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NOTICE	

	
NOTICE	 is	hereby	given	that	the	37th	Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	Members	of	M/S.	KONNDOR	
INDUSTRIES	LIMITED	 (Formerly	known	as	Arms	Paper	Limited)	will	 be	held	on	Wednesday,	
23rd	September,	2020	at	11:00	am	by	Video	Conference	or	Other	Audio	Visual	Means	to	transact	the	
following	business:‐	
	
ORDINARY	BUSINESS		
	
1] To	 	 receive,	 consider	 and	 adopt	 the	Audited	Balance	 Sheet	 of	 the	Company	 as	 at	 	 31st	March,	

2020	and	Statement	of	Profit	and	Loss	for	the	year	ended	on	that	date	together	with	Directors’	
and	the	Auditors’	Report	thereon.	
	

2] To	 appoint	 a	 Director	 in	 place	 of	 Shri	 Shashikant	 Thakar	 (DIN	 02887471),	 who	 retires	 by	
rotation	and	being	eligible,	offers	himself	for	re‐appointment.	
	

3] To	consider,	and	if	thought	fit,	to	pass	with	or	without	modification,	the	following	resolution	as	
an	ordinary	resolution:	

	
“RESOLVED	THAT	pursuant	to	the	provisions	of	Section	139	and	other	applicable	provisions,	if	
any,	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	the	rules	framed	thereunder,	as	amended	from	time	to	time,	
the	Company	hereby	appoints	M/s.	Shah	and	Shah	(Firm	Registration	No.	131527W),	Chartered	
Accountants,	Ahmedabad,	as	the	Statutory	Auditors	of	the	Company	to	hold	office	commencing	
from	the	conclusion	of	this	Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	Company	till	 the	Conclusion	of	42nd	
Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	Company,	at	a	remuneration	as	may	be	decided	by	the	Board	of	
Directors	of	the	Company	as	per	the	recommendation	of	the	Audit	Committee”.	
	

	
For	and	on	Behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors		

	
	
Place	 :	Ahmedabad																																									 																		 	 	 	 										Udit	Vora	
Date			 :	24/08/2020			 	 	 	 					 	 	 	 			Company	Secretary	

A38017	
	
	

NOTES:	
	
1]	 In	view	of	 the	 continuing	Covid‐19	pandemic,	 the	Ministry	of	Corporate	Affairs	 (“MCA”)	has	

vide	its	Circular	No.	20	dated	May	5,	2020	read	with	Circular	No.	14	dated	April	8,	2020	and	
Circular	No.	17	dated	April	13,	2020	(hereinafter	collectively	referred	to	as	“MCA	Circulars”)	
permitted	 the	holding	of	Annual	General	Meeting	 through	VC	or	OAVM	without	 the	physical	
presence	 of	Members	 at	 a	 common	 venue.	 In	 compliance	with	 these	MCA	Circulars	 and	 the	
relevant	 provisions	 of	 the	 Companies	 Act,	 2013	 and	 the	 SEBI	 (Listing	 Obligations	 and	
Disclosure	Requirements)	Regulations,	2015,	 the	Annual	General	Meeting	of	 the	Members	of	
the	Company	is	being	held	through	VC/OAVM.	

	
2]	 Since	 this	 AGM	 is	 being	 held	 pursuant	 to	 the	 MCA	 Circulars	 through	 VC/OAVM,	 physical	

attendance	of	Members	has	been	dispensed	with.		Accordingly,	the	facility	for	appointment	of	
proxies	by	 the	Members	will	not	be	available	 for	 the	Annual	General	Meeting	and	hence	 the	
Proxy	Form	and	Attendance	Slip	are	not	annexed	to	the	Notice.	
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3]	 The	Notice	of	the	Annual	General	Meeting	along	with	the	Annual	Report	for	the	financial	year	

2019‐20	is	being	sent	only	by	electronic	mode	to	those	Members	whose	email	addresses	are	
registered	 with	 the	 Company/Depositories	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	 aforesaid	 MCA	 Circulars	
and	circular	issued	by	SEBI	dated	May	12,	2020.	Members	may	note	that	the	Notice	of	Annual	
General	Meeting	and	Annual	Report	for	the	financial	year	2019‐20	will	also	be	available	on	the	
Company’s	 website	 www.konndorindustries.com;	 website	 of	 the	 Stock	 Exchanges	 i.e.	 BSE	
Limited.	 Members	 can	 attend	 and	 participate	 in	 the	 Annual	 General	 Meeting	 through	
VC/OAVM	facility	only.	

	
4]	 Members	 attending	 the	 meeting	 through	 VC/OAVM	 shall	 be	 counted	 for	 the	 purposes	 of	

reckoning	the	quorum	under	Section	103	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013.	
	
5]	 Institutional/Corporate	Shareholders	 (i.e.	other	 than	 individuals/HUF,	NRI,	etc)	are	required	

to	 send	 a	 scanned	 copy	 (PDF/JPEG	 Format)	 of	 its	 Board	 Resolution	 or	 governing	 body	
Resolution/Authorisation	 etc.,	 authorising	 its	 representative	 to	 attend	 the	 Annual	 General	
Meeting	 through	 VC/OAVM	 on	 its	 behalf	 and	 to	 vote	 through	 remote	 e‐voting.	 	 The	 said	
Resolution/Authorization	 shall	 be	 sent	 to	 the	 Scrutinizer	 by	 email	 through	 their	 registered	
email	 address	 to	 csyogesh.chhunchha@gmail.com	 with	 copies	marked	 to	 the	 Company	 at	
konndorind@gmail.com	

	
6]	 The	Register	 of	Members	 and	 the	 Share	Transfer	 Books	 of	 the	 Company	will	 remain	 closed	

from	17/09/2020	to	23/09/2020	(both	days	inclusive).	
	
7]	 Registration	of	email	ID	and	Bank	Account	details:	

In	 case	 the	 shareholder’s	 email	 ID	 is	 already	 registered	 with	 the	 Company/its	 Registrar	 &	
Share	 Transfer	 Agent	 “RTA”/Depositories,	 log	 in	 details	 for	 e‐voting	 are	 being	 sent	 on	 the	
registered	email	address.	
	
In	case	the	shareholder	has	not	registered	his/her/their	email	address	with	the	Company/its	
RTA/Depositories	and	or	not	updated	the	Bank	Account	mandate	for	receipt	of	dividend,	the	
following	instructions	to	be	followed:	
	
(i) Kindly	 log	 in	 to	 the	 website	 of	 our	 RTA,	 Link	 Intime	 India	 Private	 Ltd.,	

www.linkintime.co.in	under	Investor	Services	>	Email/Bank	detail	Registration	‐	fill	in	
the	details	and	upload	the	required	documents	and	submit.	OR	

	
(ii) In	the	case	of	Shares	held	in	Demat	mode:	

The	 shareholder	may	 please	 contact	 the	Depository	 Participant	 (“DP”)	 and	 register	
the	email	address	and	bank	account	details	 in	the	demat	account	as	per	the	process	
followed	and	advised	by	the	DP.	

	
8]	 Members	holding	shares	in	physical	form	are	requested	to	notify	the	change	in	their	addresses,	

Bank	details	etc.,	if	any,	to	the	Company	at	the	registered	office	of	the	Company	or	to	M/s.	Link	
Intime	 India	 Private	 Limited	 –	 Registrar	 &	 Share	 Transfer	 Agents,	 by	 quoting	 their	 folio	
numbers.	 Members	 holding	 shares	 in	 electronic	 mode	 may	 update	 such	 details	 with	 their	
respective	Depository	Participants	[DPs].	
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9]	 Members	holding	shares	in	physical	form	can	avail	of	the	nomination	facility	by	filing	Form	2B	

(in	duplicate)	with	the	Company	or	 its	Registrar	&	Share	Transfer	Agent	which	will	be	made	
available	on	request	and	in	case	of	shares	held	in	dematerialized	form,	the	nomination	has	to	
be	lodged	with	their	DPs’.	
	

10]	 Members	of	the	Company	who	have	multiple	accounts	in	identical	names	or	joint	accounts	in	
the	 same	 order	 are	 requested	 to	 send	 all	 the	 share	 certificates	 to	 the	 Registrar	 &	 Share	
Transfer	Agents	M/s.	Link	 Intime	 India	Private	Limited	or	 to	 the	Registered	Office	 of	 the	
Company	 for	 consolidation	 of	 all	 such	 shareholdings	 into	 one	 account	 to	 facilitate	 better	
service.	

	
11]	 Members	 desirous	 of	 obtaining	 any	 information	 concerning	 the	Accounts	 and	Operations	 of	

the	 Company	 are	 requested	 to	 address	 their	 questions	 to	 the	 Company	 Secretary	 of	 the	
Company	 so	 as	 to	 reach	 at	 least	 seven	 days	 before	 the	 date	 of	 the	 meeting,	 so	 that	 the	
information	may	be	made	available	at	the	meeting,	to	the	best	extent	possible.	

	
12]	 In	 all	 correspondence	 with	 the	 Company	 or	 with	 its	 Share	 Transfer	 Agents,	 members	 are	

requested	to	quote	their	folio	number	and	in	case	their	shares	are	held	in	the	dematerialized	
form,	they	must	quote	their	DP	ID	and	Client	ID.	

	
13]	 The	 shares	 of	 the	 Company	 are	 in	 compulsory	 demat	 segment.	 Those	 members	 who	 still	

continue	 to	hold	shares	 in	physical	 form,	are	requested	to	get	 their	shares	dematerialized	at	
the	earliest.	

	
14]	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 has	made	 it	mandatory	 for	 every	 participant	 in	 the	

securities/capital	 market	 to	 furnish	 Income	 Tax	 Permanent	 Account	 Number	 (PAN).		
Accordingly,	all	the	shareholders	(including	joint	holders)	holding	shares	in	physical	form	are	
requested	 to	 submit	 copy	 of	 their	 PAN	 Card	 for	 the	 purpose	 of	 transfer	 to	 our	 Registrar	 &	
Share	Transfer	Agents,	M/s.	Link	Intime	India	Private	Limited.	

	
15]	 Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	has	made	 it	mandatory	for	every	shareholder	who	is	

holding	 their	 shares	 in	 physical	 form,	 to	 submit	 their	 PAN	 Card	 and	 Bank	 details	 for	
verification	and	updation	of	records.	The	Trading	of	Shares	in	physical	form	will	be	disallowed	
w.e.f.	1st	April,	2019	and	only	demat	trading	will	be	allowed.	

	
16].			Voting	through	electronic	means:	

In	compliance	with	provisions	of	Section	108	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	Rule	20	of	the	
Companies	(Management	and	Administration)	Rules,	2014,	the	Company	is	pleased	to	provide	
to	its	members	facility	to	exercise	their	right	to	vote	at	the	37th	Annual	General	Meeting	(AGM)	
by	 electronic	means	 and	 the	 business	 (es)	 contained	 therein	may	 be	 transacted	 through	 e‐
Voting	Services	provided	by	Central	Depository	Services	Limited	(CDSL):	

	
The	instructions	for	shareholders	voting	electronically	are	as	under:	
	

(i) The	 voting	 period	 begins	 on	 20th	 September,	 2020	 (09:00	 a.m.)	 and	 ends	 on	 22nd	

September,	2020	(05:00	p.m.).	During	this	period	shareholders’	of	the	Company,	holding	
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shares	either	 in	physical	 form	or	 in	dematerialized	form,	as	on	the	cut‐off	date	(record	
date)	of	 16th	 September,	2020,	may	 cast	 their	 vote	 electronically.	The	e‐voting	module	
shall	be	disabled	by	CDSL	for	voting	thereafter.	

	
(ii) The	shareholders	should	log	on	to	the	e‐voting	website	www.evotingindia.com.	

	
(iii) Click	on	Shareholders.	

	
(iv) Now	Enter	your	User	ID		

	
a. For	CDSL:	16	digits	beneficiary	ID,		
b. For	NSDL:	8	Character	DP	ID	followed	by	8	Digits	Client	ID,		
c. Members	holding	shares	in	Physical	Form	should	enter	Folio	Number	registered	with	
the	Company.	

	
(v) Next	enter	the	Image	Verification	as	displayed	and	Click	on	Login.	

	
(vi) If	you	are	holding	shares	in	demat	form	and	had	logged	on	to	www.evotingindia.com	and	

voted	on	an	earlier	voting	of	any	company,	then	your	existing	password	is	to	be	used.		
	

(vii) If	you	are	a	first	time	user	follow	the	steps	given	below:	
	
	
	 For	Members	holding	shares	in	Demat	Form	and	Physical	Form	

PAN	 Enter	 your	 10	 digit	 alpha‐numeric	 *PAN	 issued	 by	 Income	 Tax	 Department	
(Applicable	for	both	demat	shareholders	as	well	as	physical	shareholders)	
 Members	 who	 have	 not	 updated	 their	 PAN	 with	 the	 Company/Depository	
Participant	are	requested	to	use	the	sequence	number	which	is	printed	on	Postal	
Ballot	/	Attendance	Slip/Address	Slip.	

DOB	 Enter	the	Date	of	Birth	as	recorded	in	your	demat	account	or	in	the	company	records	
for	the	said	demat	account	or	folio	in	dd/mm/yyyy	format.	

Dividend	
Bank	
Details	

Enter	 the	 Dividend	 Bank	 Details	 as	 recorded	 in	 your	 demat	 account	 or	 in	 the	
company	records	for	the	said	demat	account	or	folio.	

 Please	enter	the	DOB	or	Dividend	Bank	Details	in	order	to	login.	If	the	details	are	
not	recorded	with	the	depository	or	company	please	enter	the	member	id	/	folio	
number	in	the	Dividend	Bank	details	field	as	mentioned	in	instruction	(iv).	

	
(viii) After	entering	these	details	appropriately,	click	on	“SUBMIT”	tab.	

	



Arms Paper Limited                                      27th Annual Report 
2009-10 

 

(ix) Members	holding	shares	in	physical	form	will	then	directly	reach	the	Company	selection	
screen.	 However,	 members	 holding	 shares	 in	 demat	 form	 will	 now	 reach	 ‘Password	
Creation’	menu	wherein	they	are	required	to	mandatorily	enter	their	login	password	in	
the	new	password	field.	Kindly	note	that	this	password	is	to	be	also	used	by	the	demat	
holders	 for	 voting	 for	 resolutions	 of	 any	 other	 company	 on	which	 they	 are	 eligible	 to	
vote,	 provided	 that	 company	 opts	 for	 e‐voting	 through	 CDSL	 platform.	 It	 is	 strongly	
recommended	not	to	share	your	password	with	any	other	person	and	take	utmost	care	
to	keep	your	password	confidential.	

	
(x) For	Members	holding	shares	in	physical	form,	the	details	can	be	used	only	for	e‐voting	on	

the	resolutions	contained	in	this	Notice.	
	

(xi) Click	 on	 the	 EVSN	 for	 the	 relevant	 “Konndor	 Industries	 Limited	 (formerly	 known	 as	
Arms	Paper	Limited”)	on	which	you	choose	to	vote.	

	
(xii) On	the	voting	page,	you	will	see	“RESOLUTION	DESCRIPTION”	and	against	the	same	the	

option	 “YES/NO”	 for	 voting.	 Select	 the	 option	 YES	 or	 NO	 as	 desired.	 The	 option	 YES	
implies	that	you	assent	to	the	Resolution	and	option	NO	implies	that	you	dissent	to	the	
Resolution.	

	
(xiii) Click	on	the	“RESOLUTIONS	FILE	LINK”	if	you	wish	to	view	the	entire	Resolution	details.	

	
(xiv) After	 selecting	 the	 resolution	 you	 have	 decided	 to	 vote	 on,	 click	 on	 “SUBMIT”.	 A	

confirmation	box	will	be	displayed.	If	you	wish	to	confirm	your	vote,	click	on	“OK”,	else	to	
change	your	vote,	click	on	“CANCEL”	and	accordingly	modify	your	vote.	

	
(xv) Once	you	“CONFIRM”	your	vote	on	the	resolution,	you	will	not	be	allowed	to	modify	your	

vote.	
	

(xvi) You	can	also	take	out	print	of	the	voting	done	by	you	by	clicking	on	“Click	here	to	print”	
option	on	the	Voting	page.	

	
(xvii) If	Demat	account	holder	has	forgotten	the	same	password	then	enter	the	User	ID	and	the	

image	verification	code	and	click	on	Forgot	Password	&	enter	the	details	as	prompted	by	
the	system.	

	
(xviii) Note	for	Non	–	Individual	Shareholders	and	Custodians	

	
 Non‐Individual	 shareholders	 (i.e.	 other	 than	 Individuals,	 HUF,	NRI	 etc.)	 and	 Custodian	

are	required	to	log	on	to	www.evotingindia.com	and	register	themselves	as	Corporates.	
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 A	scanned	copy	of	the	Registration	Form	bearing	the	stamp	and	sign	of	the	entity	should	

be	emailed	to	helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.	

 After	 receiving	 the	 login	 details	 a	 compliance	 user	 should	 be	 created	 using	 the	 admin	

login	and	password.	The	Compliance	user	would	be	able	to	link	the	account(s)	for	which	

they	wish	to	vote	on.	

 The	 list	 of	 accounts	 should	 be	 mailed	 to	 helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com	 and	 on	

approval	of	the	accounts	they	would	be	able	to	cast	their	vote.		

 A	scanned	copy	of	the	Board	Resolution	and	Power	of	Attorney	(POA)	which	they	have	

issued	in	favour	of	the	Custodian,	if	any,	should	be	uploaded	in	PDF	format	in	the	system	

for	the	scrutinizer	to	verify	the	same.	

	
(xix) In	case	you	have	any	queries	or	issues	regarding	e‐voting,	you	may	refer	the	Frequently	

Asked	 Questions	 (“FAQs”)	 and	 e‐voting	 manual	 available	 at	 www.evotingindia.com,	
under	help	section	or	write	an	email	to	helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.	

	
17]		 Instructions	 for	 Joining	 Vedio	 Conference	 for	 Attending	 Annual	 General	 Meeting	 of	 the	

Company.	 Shareholders	 are	 requested	 to	 join	 the	 meeting	 atleast	 15	 minutes	 before	 the	
meeting	time.	

	
(i) The	shareholders	should	click	on	the	meeting	link	

https://sunresolution.webex.com/sunresolution/j.php?MTID=m9a5d561c640cb1706eb0abb0703a5
503	

 
(ii) Press	the	Join	Meeting	button	
	
(iii) Enter	your	name	and	email	id	as	mentioned	in	your	Demat	account	
	
(iv) Allow	access	to	your	Camera	and	Microphone	Settings	

	
	

For	and	on	Behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors		
	
	
Place	 :	Ahmedabad																																									 																		 	 	 	 										Udit	Vora	
Date			 :	24/08/2020	 	 	 	 	 	 					 	 			Company	Secretary	

A38017	
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DIRECTORS’	REPORT	
	
To,	
The	Members,	
KONNDOR	INDUSTRIES	LIMITED		
AHMEDABAD	
	
Your	 Directors	 take	 pleasure	 in	
presenting	the	37th	Annual	Report	of	your	
Company	together	with	Audited	Accounts	
for	the	year	ended	31st	March,	2020.	

	
1. FINANCIAL	HIGHLIGHTS:	

	
Your	 company’s	 performance	 for	 the	
financial	 year	 2019‐20	 is	 summarized	
below:‐	
																																																																																									
	 2019‐20	

(Rs.	in	
lacs)	

2018‐19
(Rs.	in	
lacs)

Total	Revenue	 1210.31	 5185.77
Total	Expenses		 1213.46	 5176.36
Profit	(Loss)	
Before	Taxes	

(3.15)	 9.40

Net	Tax	Expense	 1.69	 (2.33)
Profit/	(Loss)	
for	the	period	
(After	Tax)	

(4.84)	 7.07

	
2. OPERATIONS:	
	

Your	 Company	 has	 earned	 total	 revenue	
of	 Rs.	 1210.31	 Lacs	 as	 compared	 to	 Rs.	
5185.77	 Lacs	 in	 the	 previous	 year.	 The	
total	 expenditure	 incurred	 during	 the	
year	 was	 Rs.	 1213.46	 Lacs	 as	 compared	
to	Rs.	5176.36	Lacs	 in	the	previous	year.	
The	 Net	 Loss	 after	 taxation	 during	 the	
year	 under	 review	 is	 Rs.	 3.15	 Lacs	 as	
compared	to	previous	year’s	Profit	of	Rs.	
9.40	Lacs	in	the	previous	year.		
	

3. DIVIDEND:	
	

With	 a	 view	 to	 conserve	 the	 resources,	
your	 Directors	 do	 not	 recommend	 any	
dividend	 on	 the	 equity	 share	 capital	 of	
the	 Company	 for	 the	 year	 ended	 31st	
March,	2020.	

	
4. PUBLIC	DEPOSITS:	
	

Your	 Company	 has	 not	 accepted	 any	
deposits	 from	 public	 during	 the	 year	
under	review.	

	
5. DIRECTORS:	
	

Shri	 Shashikant	 Thakar	 retires	 at	 the	
ensuing	 Annual	 General	 Meeting	 of	 the	
Company	 and	 being	 eligible	 for	 re‐
appointment,	 he	 offers	 himself	 for	 re‐
appointment.	
	
Shri	 Santoshkumar	 Pandey,	 has	 been	
appointed	 as	 Additional	 Director	 and	
Chief	 Financial	 Officer	 of	 the	 Company	
w.e.f	24th	April,	2019.		
	
Shri	Sanjay	Gupta,	has	been	appointed	as	
Whole	 Time	 Director	 of	 the	 Company	
w.e.f	24th	April,	2019.		
	
Shri	 Rushal	 Patel,	 Shri	 Nishant	 Kumar	
and	 Shri	 Nikhil	 Rajpuria	 has	 resigned	
from	 the	 office	 of	 Director	 of	 the	
Company	 w.e.f.	 24th	 April,	 2019.	 The	
Board	 places	 on	 record	 its	 appreciation	
for	 the	 services	 rendered	 by	 them	 in	
their	 tenure	 as	 Directors	 of	 the	
Company.	
	

6. COMPOSITION	 AND	 NUMBER	 OF	
MEETINGS	OF	THE	BOARD		
	
The	 Board	 of	 Directors	 of	 the	 Company	
consists	of	well	qualified	and	experinced	
persons	 having	 expertise	 in	 their	
respective	areas.	It	has		combination	of	3	
Executive	 Directors,	 1	 Independent	
Director.	
	
The	Board	 of	Directors	 is	 in	 continuous	
search	 for	 a	 Woman	 Director	 and	
Independent	 Directors	 to	 further	
strengthen	 the	 Composition	 of	 the	
Board.	
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The	Board	meets	at	regular	interval	with	
gap	 between	 two	 meetings	 not	
exceeding	120	days.	Additional	meetings	
are	held	as	and	when	necessary.	During	
the	 year	 under	 the	 review,	 the	 Board	
met	8	times	on	the	following	dates:	24th	
April,	 2019,	 29th	 May,	 2019,	 12th	 July,	
2019,	 14th	 	 August,	 2019,	 18th	 October,	
2019,	 14th	 November,	 2019,	 14th	
February,	2020	and	23rd	March,2020.	

	
7. 	DIRECTORS’	RESPONSIBILITY	
STATEMENT:	

	
In	 terms	 of	 Section	 134	 (3)	 of	 the	
Companies	 Act,	 2013,	 in	 relation	 to	 the	
financial	 statements	 for	 FY	 2019‐20	 the	
Board	of	Directors	state	that	

	
a) In	 preparation	 of	 the	 annual	

accounts,	 the	applicable	accounting	
standards	have	been	followed	along	
with	proper	explanation	relating	to	
material	departures,	if	any;	
	

b) The	 Directors	 have	 selected	 such	
accounting	 policies	 and	 applied	
them	 consistently	 and	 made	
judgments	 and	 estimates	 that	 are	
reasonable	 and	 prudent	 so	 as	 to	
give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	state	
of	affairs	of	the	Company	as	on	31st	
March,	 2020	 and	 of	 the	 profits	 for	
the	year	ended	31st	March,	2020;	
	

c) the	 Directors	 have	 taken	 proper	
and	sufficient	care	for	maintenance	
of	 adequate	 accounting	 records	 in	
accordance	 with	 the	 provisions	 of	
the	 Companies	 Act,	 2013	 for	
safeguarding	 the	 assets	 of	 the	
Company	 and	 for	 preventing	 and	
detecting	 fraud	 and	 other	
irregularities;	and	
	

d) The	 financial	statements	have	been	
prepared	on	a	going	concern	basis.	
	

e) The	 Directors	 had	 laid	 down	
internal	 financial	 controls	 to	 be	
followed	 by	 the	 company	 and	 that	
such	 internal	 financial	 controls	 are	
adequate	 and	 were	 operating	
effectively.	
	

f) The	 directors	 had	 devised	 proper	
systems	 to	ensure	 compliance	with	
the	provisions	of	all	applicable	laws	
and	 that	 such	 systems	 were	
adequate	and	operating	effectively	

	
8. POLICY	ON	DIRECTORS’	APPOINTMENT	

AND	 REMUNERATION	 INCLUDING	
CRITERIA	 FOR	 DETERMINING	
QUALIFICATIONS,	 POSITIVE	
ATTRIBUTES,	 INDEPENDENCE	 OF	 A	
DIRECTOR	 AND	 OTHER	 MATTERS	
PROVIDED	UNDER	SUB‐SECTION	(3)	OF	
SECTION	178		

	
The	 Nomination	 &	 Remuneration	
Committee	 considers	 the	 requirement	 of	
the	 skill	 on	 the	 Board,	 integrity	 of	 the	
persons	 	 having	 	 standing	 	 in	 their		
respective	 	 field/profession	 and	who	 can	
effectively	 contribute	 to	 the	 Company's	
business	 and	 	 policy	 	 decisions,		
recommend	 	 	 the	 	 appointment	 to	 	 the	
Board	for	approval.	
	
The	 Committee	 has	 approved	 a	 policy	
with	 respect	 to	 the	 appointment	 and	
remuneration	of	the	Directors	and	Senior	
Management	personnel.		

9. STATUTORY	 AUDITORS	 AND	 THEIR	
REPORT	
	
M/s.	 Shah	 and	 Shah,	 Chartered	
Accountants,	the	Statutory	Auditors	of	the	
Company	 has	 Conducted	 the	 audit	 for	
Financial	Year	2019‐20.	
	
The	board	has	decided	to	appoint	them	as	
Statutory	 auditors	 to	 conduct	 the	 Audit	
for	 the	 further	 Period	 	 at	 the	 ensusing	
Annual	general	Meeting.	
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The	Auditors’	Report	does	not	contain	any	
qualification,	 reservation	 or	 any	 adverse	
remark.	

10. CORPORATE	GOVERNANCE	REPORT	
	

Pursuant	 to	 Regulation	 15	 of	 the	 SEBI	
(Listing	 Obligations	 and	 Disclosure	
Requirements)	 Regulations,	 2015,	 the	
Report	 on	 Corporate	 Governance	 and	
Management	Discussion	&	Analysis	Report	
are	not	applicable	 to	 the	Company,	as	 the	
paid	 up	 equity	 share	 capital	 of	 the	
Company	is	less	than	Rs.	10	Crore	and	net	
worth	of	 the	Company	 is	 less	 than	Rs.	 25	
Crores	as	on	the	last	date	of	Financial	year	
2019‐20.	
	

11. INTERNAL	AUDITORS	
	
Pursuant	 to	 the	 provisions	 of	 Section	
138	read	with	Rule	13	of	the	Companies	
(Accounts)	 Rules,	 2014,	 your	 Company	
has	 appointed	M/s	 RNCA	&	Associates.,	
Chartered	 Accountants,	 as	 the	 Internal	
Auditors	of	the	Company	for	conducting	
internal	 audit	 for	 the	 financial	 year	
2020‐21.	
	

12. SECRETARIAL	AUDIT	REPORT	
	
Pursuant	 to	 Section	 204	 read	 with	
Section	 134(3)	 of	 the	 Companies	 Act,	
2013,	 the	 Board	 of	 Directors	 has	
appointed	 Ms.	 Viral	 Garachh.,	 Company	
Secretary,	 Ahmedabad	 as	 Secretarial	
Auditor	of	the	Company	for	FY	2019‐20.		
The	 Secretarial	 Audit	 Report	 issued	 in	
Compliance	 with	 SEBI	 (LODR)	 by	 Ms.	
Viral	 Garachh.	 Is	 annexed	 with	 the	
Board’s	report	as	Annexure	C.	

	

13. SECRETARIAL	AUDITORS’	REMARKS	
	
Ms.	 Viral	 Garachh,	 Company	 Secretary	
who	 was	 appointed	 as	 Secretarial	
Auditor	for	the	Company	for	conducting	
audit	 for	 the	 year	 2019‐20,	 has	 given	
following	qualifications	in	her	report	
	

“Section	149	of	the	companies	Act,	2013	
and	 regulation	 17	 of	 Securities	 and	
Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Listing	
Obligation	and	Disclosure	Requirement)	
Regulation,	2015	has	not	been	complied	
with.	
	
Section	203	of	 the	Companies	Act,	2013	
has	not	been	complied	with.	
	
Board	of	Directors	of	the	Company	is	not	
duly	 constituted	with	proper	balance	of	
Executive	 Directors,	 Non‐Executive	
Directors	 and	 Independent	 Directors	 as	
there	 is	 no	 executive	 directors	 in	 the	
board	of	directors	of	the	Company	
	

14. MANAGEMENT’S	VIEW	ON	REMARKS	
	
With	reference	to	the	remarks	provided	
in	the	Secretarial	Audit	Report,	Board	of	
Directors	 of	 the	 Company	 has	
considered	 the	 remarks.	 With	 respects	
to	 non‐appointment	 of	 Directors,	 your	
Directors	 were	 not	 able	 to	 find	 any	
suitable	candidate	 for	 the	post	and	thus	
the	 position	 remains	 vacant.	 Your	
Directors	 will	 strive	 harder	 to	 find	 a	
suitable	candidate	and	will	comply	with	
the	 law.	 With	 opening	 of	 the	
Independent	Director’s	Repository,	your	
Directors	 are	 hopeful	 to	 appoint	
Directors	to	the	Board.	
	

15. CODE	OF	CONDUCT		
	
The	 Company	 has	 adopted	 a	 Code	 of	
Business	Conduct	based	on	the	business	
principles	 of	 the	 Company.	 The	 Board	
has	laid	down	the	code	of	conduct	for	all	
Board	members	and	Senior	management	
of	the	Company.	The	code	of	conduct	has	
been	 posted	 on	 the	 website	 of	 the	
company.	All	Board	members	and	Senior	
management	 personnel	 affirms	 the		
compliance	with	 the	 code	 on	 an	 annual	
basis	in	the	prescribed	format.		
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16. STATEMENT	ON	DECLARATION	GIVEN	
BY	INDEPENDENT	DIRECTORS	UNDER	
SUB‐SECTION	(6)	OF	SECTION	149		
	
The	Company	has	 received	declarations	
from	 all	 the	 Independent	 Directors	
confirming	that	they	meet	the	criteria	of	
Independence	 as	 prescribed	 under	 the	
applicable	 provisions	 of	 the	 Companies	
Act,	 2013	 read	 with	 the	 Schedules	 and	
Rules	 issued	 thereunder	 as	 well	 as	
applicable	 regulations	 of	 SEBI	 (Listing	
Obligations	 and	 Disclosure	
Requirements)	Regulations,	2015.	
	

17. DEMATERIALIZATION	
	
The	 Equity	 shares	 of	 the	 Company	 are	
in	 compulsory	 demat	 segment	 and	 are	
available	 for	 trading	 in	 the	 depository	
system	 of	 both	 National	 Securities	
Depository	 Ltd	 (NSDL)	 and	 the	 Central	
Depository	Services	(India)	Ltd.	(CDSL).	
52,17,972	nos.	of	equity	shares	forming	
94.56%	 of	 the	 equity	 share	 capital	 of	
the	 Company	 stands	 dematerialized	 on	
31st	March,	2020.	

	
18. 	LISTING	OF	SHARES:	
	
	 	The	 Equity	 Shares	 of	 the	 Company	 are	

listed	 on	 the	 BSE	 Limited,	 the	 nation‐
wide	Stock	Exchange.		

	
19. PARTICULARS	 OF	 CONTRACTS	 OR	

ARRANGEMENTS	 WITH	 RELATED	
PARTIES	
	
All	 the	 related	 party	 transactions	 were	
at	 arm’s	 length	 basis.	 They	 were	 in	
compliance	 with	 the	 applicable	
provisions	 of	 the	 Companies	 Act,	 2013	
and	the	Listing	Agreement.		
	
All	the	related	party	transactions	are	put	
forth	 for	 the	 approval	 of	 appropriate	
bodies,	as	applicable,	in	compliance	with	
the	 applicable	 provisions	 of	 the	 Act.	 A	
statement	 of	 all	 related	 party	
transactions	 is	 presented	 before	 the	

Audit	 and	Risk	Management	Committee	
for	 its	 review	 on	 quarterly	 basis,	
specifying	 the	 nature,	 value	 and	 terms	
and	conditions	of	the	transaction.	

	
The	 particulars	 of	
contracts/arrangements	entered	into	by	
the	 Company	 with	 related	 parties	
referred	 to	 in	 sub‐section	 (1)	of	 section	
188	 of	 the	 Companies	 Act,	 2013	 are	
annexed	to	this	report	as	Annexure	A.	
	

20. CORPORATE	SOCIAL	RESPONSIBILITY	
(CSR)	

	

Provisions	 of	 Corporate	 Social	
Responsibility	 (CSR)	 are	 currently	 not	
applicable	to	the	Company.	

21. CONSERVATION	 OF	 ENERGY,	
TECHNOLOGY	ABSORPTION,	FOREIGN	
EXCHANGE	EARNINGS	AND	OUTGO	

	
The	 details	 relating	 to	 conservation	 of	
energy,	 technology	 absorption,	 foreign	
exchange	earnings	and	outgo	prescribed	
under	 Section	 134	 (3)(m)	 of	 the	
Companies	 Act,	 2013	 read	 with	 Rule	
8(3)	 of	 the	 Companies	 (Account)	 Rules,	
2014	are	not	applicable	to	the	Company.	
	

22. PARTICULARS	OF	EMPLOYEES	
	
The	 information	 required	 pursuant	 to	
Section	 197	 read	 with	 the	 Companies	
(Appointment	 and	 Remuneration	 of	
Managerial	 Personnel)	 Rules,	 2014	 are	
not	applicable	to	the	Company.	

23. THE	EXTRACT	OF	THE	ANNUAL	
RETURN		
	
The	details	forming	part	of	the	extract	of	
the	 Annual	 Return	 in	 Form	 MGT	 9	 as	
required	 under	 Section	 134	 (a)	 of	 the	
Companies	 Act,	 2013,	 is	 attached	 as	
Annexure	B	to	this	Report.	
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The	Board	of	Directors	places	on	record	
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For	 and	 on	 behalf	 of	 the	 Board	 of	
Directors	
	
	
	
Shashikant	Thakar	
Chairman		
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Place	:	Ahmedabad	
Date:		24/08/2020	



A
n
n
ex
u
re
	A
	

	
Fo
rm

	N
o.
	A
O
C‐
2
	

(P
u
rs
u
an
t	
to
	c
la
u
se
	(
h
)	
of
	s
u
b
‐s
ec
ti
on
	(
3
)o
f	s
ec
ti
on
	1
3
4
	o
f	t
h
e	
A
ct
	a
n
d
	R
u
le
	8
(2
)	
of
	th
e	
Co
m
p
an
ie
s	
(A
cc
ou
n
ts
)	
R
u
le
s,
	2
0
1
4
)

Fo
rm

	fo
r	
d
is
cl
os
u
re
	o
f	p
ar
ti
cu
la
rs
	o
f	c
on
tr
ac
ts
/a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
	e
n
te
re
d
	in
to
	b
y	
th
e	
co
m
p
an
y	
w
it
h
	r
el
at
ed

p
ar
ti
es
	r
ef
er
re
d
	to
	in
	s
u
b
‐s
ec
ti
on
	(
1
)	
of
	s
ec
ti
on
	

1
8
8
	o
f	t
h
e	
Co
m
p
an
ie
s	
A
ct
,	2
0
1
3
	in
cl
u
d
in
g	
ce
rt
ai
n
	a
rm

’s
	le
n
gt
h
	t
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n
s	
u
n
d
er
	th
ir
d
	p
ro
vi
so
	th
er
et
o	

1
.	D
et
ai
ls
	o
f	c
on
tr
ac
ts
	o
r	
ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
	o
r	
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s	
n
ot
	a
t	a
rm

’s
	le
n
gt
h
	b
as
is

Sr
.	

N
o.
	
	N
am

e(
s)
	o
f	

th
e	
re
la
te
d
	

p
ar
ty
	a
n
d
	

n
at
u
re
	o
f	

re
la
ti
on
sh
ip
	

N
at
u
re
	o
f	

co
n
tr
ac
ts
/a
rr

an
ge
m
en
ts
/t
r

an
sa
ct
io
n
s	

D
u
ra
ti
on
	o
f	t
h
e	

co
n
tr
ac
ts
	/
	

ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
/t
ra
n
s

ac
ti
on
s	

Sa
li
en
t	t
er
m
s	
of
	th
e	

co
n
tr
ac
ts
	o
r	

ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
	o
r	

tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s	

in
cl
u
d
in
g	
th
e	
va
lu
e,
	if
	

an
y	

Ju
st
if
ic
at
io
n
	fo
r	

en
te
ri
n
g	
in
to
	

su
ch
	c
on
tr
ac
ts
	o
r	

ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
	o
r	

tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s	

d
at
e(
s)
	o
f	

ap
p
ro
va
l	

b
y	
th
e	

B
oa
rd
	

A
m
ou
n
t	

p
ai
d
	a
s	

ad
va
n
ce
s,
	

if
	a
n
y:
	

D
at
e	
on
	w
h
ic
h
	th
e	

sp
ec
ia
l	r
es
ol
u
ti
on
	

w
as
	p
as
se
d
	in
	

ge
n
er
al
	m
ee
ti
n
g	

as
	r
eq
u
ir
ed
	u
n
d
er
	

fi
rs
t	p
ro
vi
so
	to
	

se
ct
io
n
	1
8
8
	

		
(a
)

(b
)	
	

(c
)	

(d
)	

(e
)	

(f
)	

(g
)	

(h
)

N
ot
	A
p
p
li
ca
b
le

2
.	D
et
ai
ls
	o
f	m

at
er
ia
l	c
on
tr
ac
ts
	o
r	
ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
t	
or
	tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s	
at
	a
rm

’s
	le
n
gt
h
	b
as
is
	

Sr
.	

N
o.
	
N
am

e(
s)
	o
f	t
h
e	

re
la
te
d
	p
ar
ty
	

an
d
	n
at
u
re
	o
f	

re
la
ti
on
sh
ip
	

N
at
u
re
	o
f	

co
n
tr
ac
ts
/a
rr
an
ge

m
en
ts
/t
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n

s	

D
u
ra
ti
on
	o
f	

th
e	
co
n
tr
ac
ts
	

/	 ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts

/	
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s	

Sa
li
en
t	t
er
m
s	
of
	th
e	

Co
n
tr
ac
ts
	o
r	

ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
	o
r	

tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s	

in
cl
u
d
in
g	
va
lu
e,
	if
	

an
y:
	

D
at
e(
s)
	o
f	

ap
p
ro
va
l	b
y	
th
e	

B
oa
rd
	a
n
d
	A
u
d
it
	

Co
m
m
it
te
e,
	if
	

an
y:
	

A
m
ou
n
t	

p
ai
d
	a
s	

ad
va
n
ce
s,
	

if
	a
n
y:
	

D
at
e	
of
	w
h
ic
h
	S
p
ec
ia
l	

re
so
lu
ti
on
	w
as
	p
as
se
d
	in
	

ge
n
er
al
	m
ee
ti
n
g	
u
/s
	1
8
8
(1
)	

		
(a
)	

(b
)	
	

(c
)	

(d
)

(e
)	

(f
)	

(g
)

1.
		

Sh
ri
.	S
an
to
sh
	

K
um

ar
	P
an
de
y	

R
en
t	A
gr
ee
m
en
t

1	
Ye
ar

R
en
t	p
ai
d	
on
	th
e	

pr
op
er
ty
	u
ti
lis
ed
	b
y	
th
e	

co
m
pa
ny
.		

R
s.
	1
,8
0,
00
0	

24
/0
4/
20
19

N
il

N
ot
	A
pp
lic
ab
le

2.
	

M
r.
	U
di
t	V
or
a

R
ei
m
bu
rs
em

en
t	o
f	

ex
pe
ns
es
	in
cu
rr
ed
	

on
	b
eh
al
f	o
f	

co
m
pa
ny
	

N
A

N
A

N
A
	

48
00

N
A

	



D
IR
EC

TO
R
S’
R
EP
O
R
T 
‐ 
A
N
N
EX
U
R
E 
‐ 
B
 

Fo
rm

 N
o
. M

G
T‐
9 

EX
TR

A
C
T 
O
F 
A
N
N
U
A
L 
R
ET
U
R
N
 

as
 o
n
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an

ci
al
 y
ea
r 
en

d
ed

 o
n
 3
1s

t  M
ar
ch
, 2
02

0 

[P
u
rs
u
an
t 
to
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 9
2
(3
) 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
m
p
an
ie
s 
A
ct
, 2
0
1
3 
an
d
 R
u
le
 1
2
(1
) 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
m
p
an
ie
s 
(M

an
ag
em

en
t 
an
d
 A
d
m
in
is
tr
at
io
n
) 
R
u
le
s,
 2
01

4]
 

 

I. 
R
EG

IS
TR

A
TI
O
N
 A
N
D
 O
TH

ER
 D
ET
A
IL
S:
  

i)
   
 C
IN
:‐
 

L5
11

00
G
J1
98

3P
LC
00

60
41

 

ii)
   
R
eg
is
tr
at
io
n
 D
at
e:
   

2
3r

d
 M

ar
ch
, 1
98

3 

iii
) 
 N
am

e 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
m
p
an

y:
 

Ko
n
n
d
o
r 
In
d
u
st
ri
es
 L
im

it
ed

 

iv
) 
 C
at
eg
o
ry
 /
 S
u
b
‐C
at
eg
o
ry
 o
f 
th
e 
C
o
m
p
an

y:
  

P
u
b
lic
  

v)
   
 A
d
d
re
ss
 o
f 
th
e 
R
eg
is
te
re
d
 o
ff
ic
e 
an

d
 c
o
n
ta
ct
 d
et
ai
ls
: 

  
20

1 
A
vd
h
es
h
 H
o
u
se
, N

r.
 D
ev
an
g 
Pa
rk
,  

O
p
p
. S
h
ri
 G
u
ru
 G
o
vi
n
d
 G
u
ru
d
w
ar
a,
  

S.
G
. H

ig
h
w
ay
, T
h
al
te
j, 
A
h
m
ed

ab
ad
 ‐
 3
8
0
05

4 

Te
l: 
91

‐7
9‐
40

39
23

44
 

ko
n
n
d
o
ri
n
d
@
gm

ai
l.c
o
m
 

vi
) 
  W

h
et
h
er
 li
st
ed

 c
o
m
p
an

y 
Ye
s 
/ 
N
o
 : 

Ye
s 

vi
i)
  N

am
e,
 A
d
d
re
ss
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 d
et
ai
ls
 o
f 
R
eg
is
tr
ar
 a
n
d
 T
ra
n
sf
er
 A
ge
n
t,
 if
 

an
y 
:  
   

Li
n
k 
In
ti
m
e 
In
d
ia
 P
ri
va
te
 L
im

it
ed

 
5
0
6
‐5
0
8
,A
m
ar
n
at
h
 B
u
si
n
es
s 
C
en

tr
e‐
1
 

 (
A
B
C
‐1
),
 B
es
id
es
 G
al
a 
B
u
si
n
es
s 
C
en

tr
e 

N
ea
r 
X
T 
X
av
ie
r’
s 
C
o
lle
ge
 C
o
rn
er
 

O
ff
 C
 G
 R
o
ad

 , 
El
lis
b
ri
d
ge
 

A
h
m
ed

ab
ad

 3
8
0
0
0
6
 

Te
l N

o
   
   
   
 : 
+9

1
 7
9
 2
6
4
6
5
1
7
9
 /
8
6
 /
 8
7
 

E‐
m
ai
l i
d
   
   
: a
h
m
ed

ab
ad

@
lin
ki
n
ti
m
e.
co
.in

  

       



II.
 P
R
IN
C
IP
A
L 
B
U
SI
N
ES
S 
A
C
TI
V
IT
IE
S 
O
F 
TH

E 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y 

Sr
. N

o
. 

N
am

e 
an
d
 D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
P
ro
d
u
ct
s 

N
IC
 C
o
d
e 

%
 o
f 
to
ta
l 

tu
rn
o
ve
r 
o
f 
th
e 

C
o
m
p
an
y 

1
 

A
lu
m
in
iu
m
 F
o
il 
an

d
 C
o
at
ed

 S
h
ee

ts
  

2
4
2
0
2
 

5
4
.2
8
 

2
 

P
ap

er
 &
 P
ap

er
 P
ro
d
u
ct
s 

5
1
3
9
6
 

2
8
.9
4
 

3
 

P
la
st
ic
s 

4
6
6
9
3
 

1
6
.3
8
 

To
ta
l 

9
9
.6
1 

 
III
. P
A
R
TI
C
U
LA
R
S 
O
F 
H
O
LD

IN
G
, S
U
B
SI
D
IA
R
Y 
A
N
D
 A
SS
O
C
IA
TE
 C
O
M
PA

N
IE
S 
– 

 
N
IL
 

 
  IV
. S
H
A
R
E 
H
O
LD

IN
G
 P
A
TT
ER

N
 (
Eq

u
it
y 
Sh
ar
e 
C
ap

it
al
 B
re
ak
u
p
 a
s 
p
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 o
f 
To

ta
l E
q
u
it
y)
 

i)
 C
at
eg
o
ry
‐w

is
e 
Sh
ar
e 
H
o
ld
in
g 

  C
A
TE
G
O
R
Y 
O
F 
SH

A
R
EH

O
LD

ER
 

N
o
. o
f 
th
e 
sh
ar
es
 h
el
d
 a
t 
th
e 

b
eg
in
n
in
g 
o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 0
1/
04

/2
01

9 
N
o
. o
f 
sh
ar
es
 h
el
d
 a
t 
th
e 
en

d
  

o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 3
1/
03

/2
02

0 
%
 

ch
an
g

e  d
u
ri
n

g 
th
e 

ye
ar
 

D
em

at
 

P
h
ys
ic
al
 

To
ta
l 

%
 o
f 

to
ta
l 

sh
ar
es
 

D
em

at
 

P
h
ys
ic
al
 

To
ta
l 

%
 o
f 

to
ta
l 

sh
ar
es
 

A
.  
 P
R
O
M
O
TE
R
 A
N
D
   
 

   
   
 P
R
O
M
O
TE
R
 G
R
O
U
P 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

(1
) 
 IN

D
IA
N
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

a)
 In

d
iv
id
u
al
/ 
H
U
F 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

b
) 
C
en

tr
al
 G
o
vt
. 

0
0

0
0

 
0

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 

c)
 S
ta
te
 G
o
vt
 (
s)
 

0
0

0
0

 
0

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 

d
) 
B
o
d
ie
s 
C
o
rp
. 

0
0

0
0

 
0

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 

e)
 B
an

ks
 /
 F
II(
s)
 

0
0

0
0

 
0

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 



C
A
TE
G
O
R
Y 
O
F 
SH

A
R
EH

O
LD

ER
 

N
o
. o
f 
th
e 
sh
ar
es
 h
el
d
 a
t 
th
e 

b
eg
in
n
in
g 
o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 0
1/
04

/2
01

9 
N
o
. o
f 
sh
ar
es
 h
el
d
 a
t 
th
e 
en

d
  

o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 3
1/
03

/2
02

0 
%
 

ch
an
g

e  d
u
ri
n

g 
th
e 

ye
ar
 

D
em

at
 

P
h
ys
ic
al
 

To
ta
l 

%
 o
f 

to
ta
l 

sh
ar
es
 

D
em

at
 

P
h
ys
ic
al
 

To
ta
l 

%
 o
f 

to
ta
l 

sh
ar
es
 

f)
 A
n
y 
O
th
er
…
. 

0
0

0
0

 
0

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 

   
   
  S
u
b
‐T
o
ta
l A

(1
) 
: 

0
0

0
0

 
0

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(2
) 
 F
O
R
EI
G
N
 

 
 

1
. 
In
d
iv
id
u
al
s 
(N
R
Is
/F
o
re
ig
n
 

In
d
iv
id
u
al
s)
 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

2
. 
B
o
d
ie
s 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

3
. 
In
st
it
u
ti
o
n
s 
  

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

4
. 
Q
u
al
if
ie
d
 F
o
re
ig
n
 In

ve
st
o
r 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

5
. 
O
th
er
s 
  

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

   
   
  S
u
b
‐T
o
ta
l A

(2
) 
 : 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

To
ta
l S
h
ar
eh

o
ld
in
g 
o
f 

P
ro
m
o
te
r(
A
)=
A
(1
)+
A
(2
) 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

B
.  
 P
U
B
LI
C
 S
H
A
R
EH

O
LD

IN
G
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

(1
) 
 IN

ST
IT
U
TI
O
N
S 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

1
. 
M
u
tu
al
 F
u
n
d
s 
 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

2
. 
Fi
n
an

ci
al
 In

st
it
u
ti
o
n
s 
/B
an

ks
 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

3
. 
C
en

tr
al
 G
o
ve
rn
m
en

t 
 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

4
. 
St
at
e 
G
o
ve
rn
m
en

t(
s)
 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

5
. 
V
en

tu
re
 C
ap

it
al
 F
u
n
d
s 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

6
. 
In
su
ra
n
ce
 C
o
m
p
an

ie
s 
  

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

7
. 
Fo

re
ig
n
 In

st
it
u
ti
o
n
al
 In

ve
st
o
rs
  

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 



C
A
TE
G
O
R
Y 
O
F 
SH

A
R
EH

O
LD

ER
 

N
o
. o
f 
th
e 
sh
ar
es
 h
el
d
 a
t 
th
e 

b
eg
in
n
in
g 
o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 0
1/
04

/2
01

9 
N
o
. o
f 
sh
ar
es
 h
el
d
 a
t 
th
e 
en

d
  

o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 3
1/
03

/2
02

0 
%
 

ch
an
g

e  d
u
ri
n

g 
th
e 

ye
ar
 

D
em

at
 

P
h
ys
ic
al
 

To
ta
l 

%
 o
f 

to
ta
l 

sh
ar
es
 

D
em

at
 

P
h
ys
ic
al
 

To
ta
l 

%
 o
f 

to
ta
l 

sh
ar
es
 

8
. 
Fo

re
ig
n
 V
en

tu
re
 C
ap

it
al
 

In
ve
st
o
rs
  

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

9
. 
O
th
er
s 
 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0
 

   
   
  S
u
b
‐T
o
ta
l B
(1
) 
: 

0
0

0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

(2
) 
 N
O
N
‐I
N
ST
IT
U
TI
O
N
S 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

  

a)
 B
o
d
ie
s 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

 
 

i)
 In

d
ia
n
 

8
9
8
5
0
2

0
8
9
8
5
0
2

1
6
.2
8
 

8
9
7
4
9
9

0
8
9
7
4
9
9

1
6
.2
6

(0
.0
2
) 

ii)
 O
ve
rs
ea
s 

 0
 0

 0
 0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0

 
b
) 
In
d
iv
id
u
al
s 

 
 

 
  

 
(i
) 
In
d
iv
id
u
al
 s
h
ar
eh

o
ld
er
s 

h
o
ld
in
g 
n
o
m
in
al
 s
h
ar
e 

ca
p
it
al
 u
p
to
 R
s.
 1
 la
kh
 

8
9
8
0
0
9

2
9
1
0
2
8

1
1
8
9
0
3
7

2
1
.5
5
 

9
1
6
0
3
8

3
0
0
2
2
8

1
2
1
6
2
6
6

2
2
.0
4

0
.4
9

 

(i
i)
 In

d
iv
id
u
al
 s
h
ar
eh

o
ld
er
s 

h
o
ld
in
g 
n
o
m
in
al
 s
h
ar
e 

ca
p
it
al
 in
 e
xc
es
s 
o
f 
R
s.
1
la
kh
 

3
1
0
3
5
2
6

1
0
0
0
0

3
1
1
3
5
2
6

5
6
.4
2
 

3
0
9
8
9
6
5

0
3
0
9
8
9
6
5

5
6
.1
6

(0
.2
7
) 

c)
 O
th
er
s 
 

2
8
9
2
6
4

0
2
8
9
2
6
4

5
.2
4
 

2
9
0
7
6
3

0
2
9
0
7
6
3

5
.2
7

0
.0
3

 
i)
 E
m
p
lo
ye
es
 

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0

 
ii)
 N
o
n
 R
es
id
en

t 
R
ep

at
ri
at
es
 

4
5
0

0
4
5
0

0
.0
1
 

3
5
0

0
3
5
0

0
.0
1

0
.0
0

 
iii
) 
N
o
n
 R
es
id
en

t 
N
o
n
 R
ep

at
ri
at
es
 

6
5
0

0
6
5
0

0
.0
1
 

1
4
3
5
0

0
1
4
3
5
0

0
.2
6

0
.2
5

 
iv
) 
N
o
n
 d
o
m
es
ti
c 
co
m
p
an

ie
s 

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0

 
v)
Tr
u
st
s 

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0

 
vi
)O
th
er
s‐
C
le
ar
in
g 
M
em

b
er
s 

5
0
0

0
5
0
0

0
.0
1
 

7
0

7
0

0
.0
0

 



C
A
TE
G
O
R
Y 
O
F 
SH

A
R
EH

O
LD

ER
 

N
o
. o
f 
th
e 
sh
ar
es
 h
el
d
 a
t 
th
e 

b
eg
in
n
in
g 
o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 0
1/
04

/2
01

9 
N
o
. o
f 
sh
ar
es
 h
el
d
 a
t 
th
e 
en

d
  

o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 3
1/
03

/2
02

0 
%
 

ch
an
g

e  d
u
ri
n

g 
th
e 

ye
ar
 

D
em

at
 

P
h
ys
ic
al
 

To
ta
l 

%
 o
f 

to
ta
l 

sh
ar
es
 

D
em

at
 

P
h
ys
ic
al
 

To
ta
l 

%
 o
f 

to
ta
l 

sh
ar
es
 

vi
i)
D
ir
ec
to
rs
 &
 T
h
ei
r 
R
el
at
iv
es
 &
 

Fr
ie
n
d
s 

2
6
2
7
1

0
2
6
2
7
1

0
.4
8
 

0
0

0
0

(0
.4
8
) 

vi
ii)
Fo

re
ig
n
 N
at
io
n
al
s 

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0

 
   
   
  S
u
b
‐T
o
ta
l B
(2
) 
: 

52
17

17
2

30
10

28
55

18
20

0
10

0.
00

 
52

17
97

2
30

02
28

55
18

20
0

10
0.
00

0.
00

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 T
o
ta
l P
u
b
lic
 S
h
ar
eh

o
ld
in
g 

(B
)=
B
(1
)+
B
(2
) 
 : 

52
17

17
2

30
10

28
55

18
20

0
10

0.
00

 
52

17
97

2
30

02
28

55
18

20
0

10
0.
00

0.
00

 

  
 

 
 

 
(C
) 
 S
h
ar
es
 h
el
d
 b
y 
C
u
st
o
d
ia
n
s 
fo
r 

G
D
R
s 
&
 A
D
R
s 

 
 

 
  

 

i)
 P
ro
m
o
te
rs
 

 
 

ii)
P
u
b
lic
 

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0

 
Su
b
‐t
o
ta
l (
C
) 

0
0

0
0
.0
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
.0
0

 
   
   
  G

R
A
N
D
 T
O
TA

L 
(A
+B

+C
) 
: 

52
17

17
2

30
10

28
55

18
20

0
10

0.
00

 
52

17
97

2
30

02
28

55
18

20
0

10
0.
00

0.
00

 
  (ii
)S
ha

re
ho

ld
in
g 
of
 P
ro
m
ot
er
s:
 N
IL
 

 
(i
ii)
 C
h
an
ge
 in
 P
ro
m
o
te
rs
’ S
h
ar
eh

o
ld
in
g:
 N
IL
 

 
         



    (iv
) S
ha

re
ho

ld
in
g 
Pa

tt
er
n 
of
 to

p 
te
n 
Sh
ar
eh
ol
de
rs
 (o

th
er
 th

an
 D
ire

ct
or
s,
 P
ro
m
ot
er
s a

nd
 H
ol
de
rs
 o
f G

DR
s a

nd
 A
DR

s)
: 

 
Sl
. N

o
. 

  
Fo
r 
Ea
ch
 o
f 
th
e 
To

p
 1
0 
Sh
ar
eh

o
ld
er
s 

Sh
ar
eh

o
ld
in
g 
at
 t
h
e 
b
eg
in
n
in
g 
o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 

01
‐0
4‐
20

19
  N
o
. o
f 
sh
ar
es
 

%
 o
f 
to
ta
l s
h
ar
es
 o
f 
th
e 
C
o
m
p
an
y 

1
 

D
ev
ka
n
t 
Sy
n
th
et
ic
s 
(I
n
d
ia
) 
P
vt
. L
td
. 

6
8
5
0
0
0

1
2
.4
1
 

2
 

R
iy
a 
V
in
it
 A
gr
aw

al
 

6
6
5
1
0
4

1
2
.0
6
 

3
 

V
in
it
 K
u
m
ar
 P
aw

an
 K
u
m
ar
 A
gr
aw

al
 

6
4
7
4
4
6

1
1
.7
3
 

4
 

A
n
ilk
u
m
ar
 P
ad

am
p
ra
sa
d
 J
ai
n
 

6
2
8
6
4
9

1
1
.3
9
 

5
 

M
it
in
 A
n
ilk
u
m
ar
 J
ai
n
 

1
7
4
2
2
8

3
.1
6
 

6
 

M
an

o
j C

 R
at
h
o
d
 

1
3
1
0
8
0

2
.3
8
 

7
 

N
am

ra
ta
 M

it
in
 J
ai
n
 

1
2
1
4
9
7

2
.2
1
 

8
 

Sa
n
ge
et
a 
A
ja
y 
G
o
en

ka
 

7
4
2
8
9

1
.3
5
 

9
 

Sh
re
e 
M
al
lik
ar
ju
n
 T
ra
d
in
ve
st
 P
vt
 L
td
 

5
5
1
7
3

0
.9
9
 

1
0
 

R
ag
h
u
vi
r 
A
rj
an

d
as
 M

ak
h
ija
 

4
6
2
8
4

0
.8
4
 

   

Sl
. N

o
. 

  
Fo
r 
Ea
ch
 o
f 
th
e 
To

p
 1
0 
Sh
ar
eh

o
ld
er
s 

Sh
ar
eh

o
ld
in
g 
at
 t
h
e 
en

d
 o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 

31
‐0
3‐
20

20
  N
o
. o
f 
sh
ar
es
 

%
 o
f 
to
ta
l s
h
ar
es
 o
f 
th
e 
C
o
m
p
an
y 

1
 

D
ev
ka
n
t 
Sy
n
th
et
ic
s 
(I
n
d
ia
) 
P
vt
. L
td
. 

6
8
5
0
0
0

1
2
.4
1
 

2
 

R
iy
a 
V
in
it
 A
gr
aw

al
 

6
6
5
1
0
4

1
2
.0
5
 

3
 

V
in
it
 K
u
m
ar
 P
aw

an
 K
u
m
ar
 A
gr
aw

al
 

6
4
7
4
4
6

1
1
.7
3
 

4
 

A
n
ilk
u
m
ar
 P
ad

am
p
ra
sa
d
 J
ai
n
 

6
2
8
6
4
9

1
1
.3
9
 

5
 

M
it
in
 A
n
ilk
u
m
ar
 J
ai
n
 

1
7
4
2
2
8
 

3
.1
6
 

6
 

M
an

o
j C

 R
at
h
o
d
 

1
6
2
7
8
3

2
.9
5
 



7
 

N
am

ra
ta
 M

it
in
 J
ai
n
 

1
2
1
4
9
7

2
.2
1
 

8
 

Sa
n
ge
et
a 
A
ja
y 
G
o
en

ka
 

7
4
2
8
9

1
.3
5
 

9
 

Sh
re
e 
M
al
lik
ar
ju
n
 T
ra
d
in
ve
st
 P
vt
 L
td
 

5
5
1
7
3

0
.9
9
 

1
0
 

R
ag
h
u
vi
r 
A
rj
an

d
as
 M

ak
h
ija
 

4
7
7
1
7

0
.8
6
 

  (iv
)S
ha

re
ho

ld
in
g 
Pa

tt
er
n 
Di
re
ct
or
s a

nd
 K
ey
 M

an
ag

er
ia
l P
er
so
nn

el
: 

 

Sr
. N

o
. 

N
am

e 
N
o
. o
f 
Sh
ar
es
 a
t 
th
e 

b
eg
in
n
in
g 
(0
1/
04

/1
9)
 /
 e
n
d
 

o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 (
31

/0
3/
20

) 

%
 o
f 
to
ta
l 

sh
ar
es
 o
f 
th
e 

C
o
m
p
an
y 

D
at
e 

In
cr
ea
se
 /
 

D
ec
re
as
e 

R
ea
so
n
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

  
A
. D

ir
ec
to
rs
: 

 
  

 
  

  

 
Sh
ri
 N
ik
h
il 
R
aj
p
u
ri
a 

2
6
2
7
1

0
.4
8

0
1
/0
4
/1
9
 

  

  
  

2
6
2
7
1

0
.4
8

3
1
/0
3
/2
0
*
 

 

  
B
. K
ey
 M

an
ag
er
ia
l P
er
so
n
n
el
: 

 N
IL

  
 

  
  

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

  
 

Sh
ri
 N
ik
h
il 
R
aj
p
u
ri
a 
re
si
gn

ed
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e 
o
ff
ic
e 
o
f 
th
e 
D
ir
ec
to
r 
w
.e
.f
. 2

4
/0
4
/2
0
1
9
 a
n
d
 t
h
u
s 
n
o
t 
to
 b
e 
co
n
si
d
er
ed

 f
o
r 
ye
ar
 e
n
d
. I
t 
is
 m

en
ti
o
n
ed

 h
er
e 

o
n
ly
 f
o
r 
re
p
o
rt
in
g 
fo
r 
th
e 
o
p
en

in
g 
o
f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 

  V.
 IN

DE
BT

ED
N
ES
S 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
d
eb

te
d
n
es
s 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
m
p
an
y 
in
cl
u
d
in
g 
in
te
re
st
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g/
ac
cr
u
ed

 b
u
t 
n
o
t 
d
u
e 
fo
r 
p
ay
m
en

t 
: N

IL
 

    V
I. 
R
EM

U
N
ER

A
TI
O
N
 O
F 
D
IR
EC

TO
R
S 
A
N
D
 K
EY
 M

A
N
A
G
ER

IA
L 
PE
R
SO

N
N
EL
 

  A
. R

em
u
n
er
at
io
n
 t
o
 M

an
ag
in
g 
D
ir
ec
to
r,
 W

h
o
le
‐t
im

e 
D
ir
ec
to
rs
 a
n
d
/o
r 
M
an
ag
er
: N

IL
 

 
 



      B.
 R
em

un
er
at
io
n 
to
 o
th
er
 d
ire

ct
or
s:
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
  (
R
s.
 In
 la
cs
) 
 

Sl
. N

o
.  

P
ar
ti
cu
la
rs
 o
f 
R
em

u
n
er
at
io
n
 

O
th
er
 D
ir
ec
to
rs
 

Sh
as
h
ik
an
t 
Th

ak
ar
 

Pa
w
an
jit
si
n
gh
 

N
eg
i 

To
ta
l 

1
 

G
ro
ss
 s
al
ar
y 

(a
) 
Sa
la
ry
 a
s 
p
er
 p
ro
vi
si
o
n
s 
co
n
ta
in
ed

 
in
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 1
7
(1
) 
o
f 
th
e 
In
co
m
e‐
ta
x 

A
ct
, 1

9
6
1
 

3
.6
0

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
‐ 

3
.6
0

  
(b
) 
V
al
u
e 
o
f 
p
er
q
u
is
it
es
 u
/s
 1
7
(2
) 
o
f 

th
e 
In
co
m
e 
Ta
x,
 A
ct
 1
9
6
1
 

‐
‐

‐

  
(c
) 
 P
ro
fi
ts
 in
 li
eu

 o
f 
sa
la
ry
 u
n
d
er
 

se
ct
io
n
 1
7
(3
) 
In
co
m
e 
ta
x 
A
ct
, 1

9
6
1
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

 
‐
 

2
 

St
o
ck
 O
p
ti
o
n
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

‐
 

3
 

Sw
ea
t 
Eq

u
it
y 

   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

‐
 

4
 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 

   
   
‐ 
as
 %
 o
f 
p
ro
fi
t 

   
  ‐

o
th
er
s 
sp
ec
if
y 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  ‐
   

5
 

O
th
er
s,
 p
le
as
e 
sp
ec
if
y 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

‐
 

  
To

ta
l 

3
.6
0

‐
3
.6
0

       
 



 
    C.
 R
EM

U
N
ER

AT
IO
N
 T
O
 K
EY
 M

AN
AG

ER
IA
L 
PE
RS
O
N
N
EL
 O
TH

ER
 T
HA

N
 M

D/
M
AN

AG
ER

/W
TD

 
(R
s.
 In
 L
ac
s)

Sl
. N

o
.  

P
ar
ti
cu
la
rs
 o
f 
R
em

u
n
er
at
io
n
 

Ke
y 
M
an
ag
er
ia
l P
er
so
n
n
el
 

 

C
EO

 
C
o
m
p
an
y 

Se
cr
et
ar
y 

Sa
n
to
sh
ku
m
ar
 

Pa
n
d
ey
 C
FO

 
To

ta
l 

1
 

G
ro
ss
 s
al
ar
y 

(a
) 
Sa
la
ry
 a
s 
p
er
 p
ro
vi
si
o
n
s 
co
n
ta
in
ed

 
in
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 1
7
(1
) 
o
f 
th
e 
In
co
m
e‐
ta
x 

A
ct
, 1

9
6
1
 

‐
4
.3
3

‐
4
.3
3

  
(b
) 
V
al
u
e 
o
f 
p
er
q
u
is
it
es
 u
/s
 1
7
(2
) 
o
f 

th
e 
In
co
m
e 
Ta
x,
 A
ct
 1
9
6
1
 

‐
‐

‐
‐

  
(c
) 
 P
ro
fi
ts
 in
 li
eu

 o
f 
sa
la
ry
 u
n
d
er
 

se
ct
io
n
 1
7
(3
) 
In
co
m
e 
ta
x 
A
ct
, 1

9
6
1
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

 
‐
 

2
 

St
o
ck
 O
p
ti
o
n
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

‐
 

3
 

Sw
ea
t 
Eq

u
it
y 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

‐
 

4
 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 

   
   
‐ 
as
 %
 o
f 
p
ro
fi
t 

   
  ‐

o
th
er
s 
sp
ec
if
y 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

 
‐
 

5
 

O
th
er
s 
(G
o
d
o
w
n
 R
en

t)
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 ‐
 

1
.8
0
 

1
.8
0

  
To

ta
l 

‐
4
.3
3

1
.8
0

6
.1
3

         



    VI
I. 
PE
N
AL
TI
ES
 / 
PU

N
IS
HM

EN
T/
 C
O
M
PO

U
N
DI
N
G
 O
F 
O
FF
EN

CE
S:
 

  Ty
p
e 

Se
ct
io
n
 o
f 
C
o
m
p
an
ie
s 

A
ct
 

B
ri
ef
 d
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

D
et
ai
ls
 o
f 

p
en

al
ty
/p
u
n
is
h
m
en

t/
C
o

m
p
o
u
n
d
in
g 
fe
es
 im

p
o
se
d
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

[R
D
/ 

N
C
LT
/C
o
u
rt
]

A
p
p
ea
l m

ad
e,
 if
 a
n
y 

gi
ve
 d
et
ai
ls
 

A
. C

O
M
PA

N
Y 

P
en

al
ty
 

N
il 

P
u
n
is
h
m
en

t 

C
o
m
p
o
u
n
d
in
g 

B
. D

IR
EC

TO
R
S 

P
en

al
ty
 

N
il 

P
u
n
is
h
m
en

t 

C
o
m
p
o
u
n
d
in
g 

C
. O

TH
ER

 O
FF
IC
ER

S 
IN
 D
EF
A
U
LT
 

P
en

al
ty
 

N
il 

P
u
n
is
h
m
en

t 

C
o
m
p
o
u
n
d
in
g 

 

 
Fo
r 
an

d
 o
n
 b
eh

al
f 
o
f 
th
e 
B
o
ar
d
 o
f 
D
ir
ec
to
rs
 

    Pl
ac
e 
: A

h
m
ed

ab
ad
 

   

Sh
as
h
ik
an
t 
Th

ak
ar
 

D
at
e 
: 2

4/
08

/2
02

0
C
h
ai
rm

an
 

D
IN
 : 
 0
28

87
47

1 

 



Annexure	C	
	

Form	No.	MR‐3	
SECRETARIAL	AUDIT	REPORT	FOR	THE	FINANCIAL	YEAR	ENDED	31.03.2020	

[Pursuant	to	section	204(1)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	rule	
No.9	of	the	Companies	(Appointment	and	Remuneration	Personnel)	

Rules,	2014]	
	

SECRETARIAL	AUDIT	REPORT	
	

FOR	THE	FINANCIAL	YEAR	ENDED	31.03.2020	
	
To,	
The	Members,	
Konndor	Industries	Limited	
(Formerly	known	as	Arms	Papers	Limited)	
	
I	have	conducted	the	secretarial	audit	of	the	compliance	of	applicable	statutory	provisions	and	
the	adherence	to	good	corporate	practices	by	Konndor	Industries	Limited	(hereinafter	called	
the	 company).	 Secretarial	 Audit	was	 conducted	 in	 a	manner	 that	 provided	me	 a	 reasonable	
basis	for	evaluating	the	corporate	conducts/statutory	compliances	and	expressing	my	opinion	
thereon.	Based	on	my	verification	of	 the	Company’s	books,	papers,	minute	books,	 forms	and	
returns	filed	and	other	records	maintained	by	the	company	and	also	the	information	provided	
by	 the	 Company,	 its	 officers,	 agents	 and	 authorized	 representatives	 during	 the	 conduct	 of	
secretarial	audit,	I	hereby	report	that	in	my	opinion,	the	company	has,	during	the	audit	period	
covering	the	financial	year	ended	on	31st	March	2020,	complied	with	the	statutory	provisions	
listed	 hereunder	 and	 also	 that	 the	 Company	 has	 proper	 Board‐processes	 and	 compliance‐
mechanism	 in	 place	 to	 the	 	 extent,	 in	 the	 manner	 and	 subject	 to	 the	 reporting	 made	
hereinafter:	
	
I	have	examined	the	books,	papers,	minute	books,	 forms	and	returns	 filed	and	other	records	
maintained	by	the	Company	for	the	financial	year	ended	on	31st	March,	2020	according	to	the	
provisions	of		
	
I. The	Companies	Act,	2013	(the	Act)	and	the	rules	made	thereunder;	
II. The	 Securities	 Contracts	 (Regulation)	 Act,	 1956	 (‘SCRA’)	 and	 the	 rules	 made	 there	

under;	
III. The	Depositories	Act,	1996	and	the	Regulations	and	Bye‐laws	Framed	there	under.	
IV. The	following	Regulations	and	Guidelines	prescribed	under	the	Securities	and	Exchange	

Board	of	India	Act,	1992	(‘SEBI	Act’):‐	
a. The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Substantial	 Acquisition	 of	 Shares	

and	Takeovers)	Regulations,	2011;	
b. The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Prohibition	 of	 Insider	 Trading)	

Regulations,	1992;	



c. The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Registrars	 to	 an	 Issue	 and	 Share	
Transfer	 Agents)	 Regulations,	 1993	 regarding	 the	 Companies	 Act	 and	 dealing	
with	client;	

d. Securities	 And	 Exchange	 Board	 Of	 India	 (Listing	 Obligations	 And	 Disclosure	
Requirements)	Regulations,	2015	

	
I	have	also	examined	compliance	with	the	applicable	clauses	of	the	following:	
	
I. Secretarial	Standards	issued	by	The	Institute	of	Company	Secretaries	of	India.	
II. The	Listing	Agreements	entered	into	by	the	Company	with	Bombay	Stock	Exchange;	

	
During	 the	 period	 under	 review	 the	 Company	 has	 complied	with	 the	 provisions	 of	 the	 Act,	
Rules,	 Regulations,	 Guidelines,	 Standards,	 etc.	 mentioned	 above	 subject	 to	 the	 following	
qualifications	and	observations:	
	
i. “Section	 149	 of	 the	 companies	Act,	 2013	 and	 regulation	 17	 of	 Securities	 and	Exchange	

Board	of	India	(Listing	Obligation	and	Disclosure	Requirement)	Regulation,	2015	has	not	
been	complied	with	having	regards	to	composition	of	board.	

ii. Formation	 of	 Audit	 committee	 and	 Nomination	 and	 Remuneration	 Committee	 is	 not	
constituted	 in	compliance	with	section	177	and	section	178	 	of	 the	Companies	Act,	2013	
and	 regulation	 18	 of	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Listing	 Obligation	 and	
Disclosure	Requirement)	Regulation,	2015	

iii. I	 further	report	 that	 the	Board	of	Directors	of	 the	Company	 is	not	duly	constituted	with	
proper	balance	of	Executive	Directors,	Non‐Executive	Directors	and	Independent	Directors	
as	 there	 is	no	woman	director	and	 independent	director	 in	 the	board	of	directors	of	 the	
Company.	

	
Except	the	above	qualifications	and	observation,	following	activities/procedures	were	undertaken	
by	the	company	that	came	to	notice	during	the	audit	of	the	Company:	
	

i. During	 the	 year,	 the	name	of	 the	 company	 is	 changed	 from	Arms	Papers	Limited	 to	
Konndor	Industries	Limited.	

	
Adequate	notice	is	given	to	all	directors	to	schedule	the	Board	Meetings,	agenda	and	detailed	
notes	on	agenda	were	sent	at	least	seven	days	in	advance,	and	a	system	exists	for	seeking	and	
obtaining	 further	 information	and	clarifications	on	 the	agenda	 items	before	 the	meeting	and	
for	 meaningful	 participation	 at	 the	 meeting.	 Majority	 decision	 is	 carried	 through	 while	 the	
dissenting	members’	views	are	captured	and	recorded	as	part	of	the	minutes.	
	
	
	
	



I	further	report	that	there	are	adequate	systems	and	processes	in	the	company	commensurate	
with	the	size	and	operations	of	the	company	to	monitor	and	ensure	compliance	with	applicable	
laws,	rules,	regulations	and	guidelines.	
	
Place	:	Ahmedabad	
Date	:	08/08/2020	
																																																																																																											Viral	A	Garachh	
																																																																																																											Company	Secretary,	
																																																																																																											ACS	No.	39943	
																																																																																																											C	P	No.:	15293	
																																																																																																											UDIN:	A039943B000562652	
	
This	report	to	be	read	with	my	letter	of	even	date	which	is	annexed	as	annexure	and	forms	an	
integral	part	of	the	report	
	
	 	



Annexure	to	Secretarial	Audit	Report	
	
To,	
The	Members,	
Konndor	Industries	Limited	
(Formerly	known	as	Arms	Papers	Limited)	
	
My	report	of	even	date	is	to	be	read	along	with	this	letter:	

1. Maintenance	of	 the	 secretarial	 records	 is	 the	 responsibility	of	 the	management	of	 the	
company.	 My	 responsibility	 is	 to	 be	 express	 as	 opinion	 on	 these	 secretarial	 records	
based	on	my	audit.	

2. I	have	followed	the	audit	practice	and	process	as	were	appropriate	to	obtain	reasonable	
assurance	 about	 the	 correctness	 of	 the	 contents	 of	 the	 Secretarial	 records.	 The	
verification	 was	 done	 on	 test	 basis	 to	 ensure	 that	 correct	 facts	 are	 reflected	 in	
secretarial	 record.	 I	believe	 that	 the	processes	and	 the	practices,	 I	 followed	provide	a	
reasonable	basis	for	my	opinion.	

3. I	have	not	verified	the	correctness	and	appropriateness	of	financial	records	and	books	
of	accounts	of	the	company.	

4. Whenever	 required	 I	 have	 obtained	 the	 management	 representation	 about	 the	
compliance	of	laws,	rules	and	regulation	and	happening	of	the	events	etc.	

5. The	 compliance	 of	 the	 provisions	 of	 corporate	 and	 other	 applicable	 law,	 Rules,	
Regulation,	Standard	is	the	responsibility	of	management.	My	examination	was	limited	
to	the	verification	of	procedure	on	test	basis.	

6. The	 Secretarial	 audit	 report	 is	 neither	 an	 assurance	 as	 to	 the	 future	 viability	 of	 the	
company	nor	of	the	efficacy	or	effectiveness	with	which	the	management	has	conducted	
the	affairs	of	the	company.	
	

Place	:	Ahmedabad																																																																																																		
Date	:		08/08/2020	
	
																																																																																																											Viral	A	Garachh	
																																																																																																											Company	Secretary,	
																																																																																																											ACS	No.	39943	
																																																																																																											COP	No.:	15293	
																																																																																																											UDIN:	A039943B000562652	



 
 

 

Independent	Auditor’s	Report	
To	the	Members	of	Konndor	Industries	Limited			
Report	on	audit	of	the	Financial	Statements		
	
Opinion	
	
We	 have	 audited	 the	 accompanying	 Ind	 AS	 financial	 statements	 of	Konndor	 Industries	
Limited	 (‘the	 Company’),	 which	 comprise	 the	 balance	 sheet	 as	 at	 March	 31,	 2020	 the	
Statement	of	Profit	and	Loss	(including	other	comprehensive	income),	Statement	of	Changes	
in	Equity	and	the	Statement	of	Cash	flows	and	the	for	the	year	then	ended,	and	a	summary	
of	significant	accounting	policies	and	other	explanatory	information	(herein	after	referred	
to	as	“Ind	AS	financial	statements”).	
	
In	our	opinion	and	to	the	best	of	our	information	and	according	to	the	explanations	given	to	
us,	the	aforesaid	financial	statements	give	the	information	required	by	the	Companies	Act,	
2013	(“the	Act”)	in	the	manner	so	required	and	give	a	true	and	fair	view	in	conformity	with	
the	 Indian	 Accounting	 Standards	 prescribed	 under	 section	 133	 of	 the	 Act	 read	with	 the	
Companies	(Indian	Accounting	Standards)	Rules,	2015,	as	amended,	(“Ind	AS”)	and	other	
accounting	principles	generally	accepted	in	India,	of	the	state	of	affairs	of	the	Company	as	at	
March	31,	2020	 the	 loss	and	 total	 comprehensive	 income,	 changes	 in	equity	and	 its	 cash	
flows	for	the	year	ended	on	that	date.	
	
Basis	for	Opinion	
	
We	conducted	our	audit	in	accordance	with	the	Standards	on	Auditing	(SAs)	specified	under	
section	143(10)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013.	Our	responsibilities	under	those	Standards	are	
further	 described	 in	 the	 Auditor’s	 Responsibilities	 for	 the	 Audit	 of	 Ind	 AS	 Financial	
Statements	section	of	our	report.	We	are	independent	of	the	Company	in	accordance	with	
the	Code	of	Ethics	issued	by	the	Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	India	together	with	the	
ethical	requirements	that	are	relevant	to	our	audit	of	the	Ind	AS	financial	statements	under	
the	provisions	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	the	Rules	thereunder,	and	we	have	fulfilled	
our	other	ethical	 responsibilities	 in	accordance	with	 these	 requirements	and	 the	Code	of	
Ethics.	We	believe	that	the	audit	evidence	we	have	obtained	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	
provide	a	basis	for	our	opinion.	
	
Key	Audit	Matters	
	
Key	 Audit	 Matters	 are	 those	matters	 that,	 in	 our	 professional	 judgement,	 were	 of	 most	
significance	in	our	audit	of	the	Ind	AS	financial	statements	of	the	current	period.		
	
We	have	determined	that	there	are	no	key	audit	matters	to	communicate	in	our	report.	
	
Emphasis	of	Matters	
	
The	outbreak	of	Coronavirus	disease	(COVID‐19)	pandemic	globally	and	in	India	is	causing	
significant	disturbance	and	slowdown	of	economic	activity.	The	Company	is	monitoring	the	



 
 

 

impact	of	global	health	pandemic	on	its	financial	position	and	liquidity.	The	Company	used	
the	principles	of	prudence	in	applying	judgements,	estimates	and	assumptions	based	on	the	
current	estimates.	The	Company	has	considered	wherever	applicable	the	possible	effects	on	
the	carrying	amounts	of	loans,	and	receivables	as	on	March	31,	2020.	Based	on	the	current	
indicators	of	future	economic	conditions,	the	management	expects	to	recover	the	carrying	
amount	of	 these	assets	 in	 full	without	any	 loss.	However,	 the	 impact	of	COVID	19	on	 the	
Company's	Financial	Statements	may	differ	from	that	estimated	as	of	the	date	of	approval	of	
these	 financial	 statement	 and	management	will	 continue	 to	 closely	monitor	any	material	
changes	to	future	economic	conditions.	Our	report	is	not	modified	in	respect	of	this	matter.	
	
Information	Other	than	Ind	AS	Financial	Statements	and	Auditor’s	Report	Thereon	
	
The	 Company’s	 Board	 of	 Directors	 is	 responsible	 for	 the	 other	 information.	 The	 other	
information	 comprises	 the	 information	 included	 in	 the	 Management	 Discussion	 and	
Analysis,	 Board’s	 Report	 including	Annexures	 to	 Board’s	 Report,	 Business	 Responsibility	
Report,	Corporate	Governance	and	Shareholder’s	Information,	but	does	not	include	Ind	AS	
financial	statements	and	our	auditor’s	report	thereon.	
		
Our	opinion	on	the	financial	statements	does	not	cover	the	other	information	and	we	do	not	
express	any	form	of	assurance	conclusion	thereon.	
	
In	connection	with	our	audit	of	 the	 financial	 statements,	our	responsibility	 is	 to	 read	 the	
other	 information	and,	 in	doing	 so,	 consider	whether	 the	other	 information	 is	materially	
inconsistent	 with	 the	 financial	 statements	 or	 our	 knowledge	 obtained	 in	 the	 audit	 or	
otherwise	appears	to	be	materially	misstated.	If,	based	on	the	work	we	have	performed,	we	
conclude	that	there	is	a	material	misstatement	of	this	other	information,	we	are	required	to	
report	that	fact.	We	have	nothing	to	report	in	this	regard.	
	
Responsibilities	 of	 Management	 and	 those	 charged	 with	 governance	 for	 Ind	 AS	
financial	statements	
	
The	Company’s	Board	of	Directors	is	responsible	for	the	matters	stated	in	section	134(5)	of	
the	Companies	Act,	2013	(“the	Act”)	with	respect	to	the	preparation	of	these	Ind	AS	financial	
statements	 that	 give	 a	 true	 and	 fair	 view	of	 the	 financial	 position,	 financial	 performance	
including	other	comprehensive	income,	change	in	equity	and	cash	flows	of	the	Company	in	
accordance	 with	 the	 Indian	 Accounting	 Standards	 (Ind	 AS)	 and	 accounting	 principles	
generally	accepted	in	India,	specified	under	section	133	of	the	Act	read	with	the	Companies	
(Indian	Accounting	 Standards)	Rules,2015,	 as	 amended.	 This	 responsibility	 also	 includes	
maintenance	of	adequate	accounting	records	in	accordance	with	the	provisions	of	the	Act	for	
safeguarding	of	the	assets	of	the	Company	and	for	preventing	and	detecting	frauds	and	other	
irregularities;	selection	and	application	of	appropriate	implementation	and	maintenance	of	
accounting	policies;	making	judgments	and	estimates	that	are	reasonable	and	prudent;	and	
design,	implementation	and	maintenance	of	adequate	internal	financial	controls	that	were	



 
 

 

operating	effectively	for	ensuring	the	accuracy	and	completeness	of	the	accounting	records,	
relevant	to	the	preparation	and	presentation	of	the	Ind	AS	financial	statement	that	give	a	
true	and	fair	view	and	are	free	from	material	misstatement,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error.	
	
In	preparing	the	Ind	AS	financial	statements,	management	is	responsible	for	assessing	the	
Company’s	ability	to	continue	as	a	going	concern,	disclosing,	as	applicable,	matters	related	
to	going	concern	and	using	the	going	concern	basis	of	accounting	unless	management	either	
intends	to	liquidate	the	Company	or	to	cease	operations,	or	has	no	realistic	alternative	but	
to	do	so.	
	
The	Board	of	Directors	are	also	responsible	for	overseeing	the	company’s	financial	reporting	
process.	
	
Auditor’s	Responsibility	for	the	Audit	of	Ind	AS	Financial	Statement	
	
Our	 objectives	 are	 to	 obtain	 reasonable	 assurance	 about	 whether	 the	 Ind	 AS	 financial	
statements	as	a	whole	are	free	from	material	misstatement,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error,	
and	to	issue	an	auditor’s	report	that	includes	our	opinion.	Reasonable	assurance	is	a	high	
level	of	assurance,	but	is	not	a	guarantee	that	an	audit	conducted	in	accordance	with	SAs	will	
always	detect	a	material	misstatement	when	it	exists.	Misstatements	can	arise	from	fraud	or	
error	and	are	considered	material	if,	individually	or	in	the	aggregate,	they	could	reasonably	
be	expected	to	influence	the	economic	decisions	of	users	taken	on	the	basis	of	these	Ind	AS	
financial	statements.	
	
As	part	of	an	audit	in	accordance	with	SAs,	we	exercise	professional	judgment	and	maintain	
professional	skepticism	throughout	the	audit.	We	also:	
	

 Identify	 and	 assess	 the	 risks	 of	 material	 misstatement	 of	 the	 Ind	 AS	 financial	
statements,	 whether	 due	 to	 fraud	 or	 error,	 design	 and	 perform	 audit	 procedures	
responsive	to	those	risks,	and	obtain	audit	evidence	that	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	
to	provide	a	basis	for	our	opinion.	The	risk	of	not	detecting	a	material	misstatement	
resulting	from	fraud	is	higher	than	for	one	resulting	from	error,	as	fraud	may	involve	
collusion,	 forgery,	 intentional	 omissions,	 misrepresentations,	 or	 the	 override	 of	
internal	control.	
	

 Obtain	an	understanding	of	internal	control	relevant	to	the	audit	in	order	to	design	
audit	procedures	that	are	appropriate	in	the	circumstances.	Under	section	143(3)(i)	
of	the	Companies	Act,	2013,	we	are	also	responsible	for	expressing	our	opinion	on	
whether	 the	 company	 has	 internal	 financial	 controls	 with	 reference	 to	 Financial	
Statements	in	place	and	the	operating	effectiveness	of	such	controls.	

	
 Evaluate	the	appropriateness	of	accounting	policies	used	and	the	reasonableness	of	

accounting	estimates	and	related	disclosures	made	by	management.	



 
 

 

	
 Conclude	on	the	appropriateness	of	management’s	use	of	the	going	concern	basis	of	

accounting	and,	based	on	the	audit	evidence	obtained,	whether	a	material	uncertainty	
exists	 related	 to	 events	 or	 conditions	 that	 may	 cast	 significant	 doubt	 on	 the	
Company’s	 ability	 to	 continue	 as	 a	 going	 concern.	 If	 we	 conclude	 that	 a	material	
uncertainty	exists,	we	are	required	to	draw	attention	in	our	auditor’s	report	to	the	
related	 disclosures	 in	 the	 Ind	 AS	 financial	 statements	 or,	 if	 such	 disclosures	 are	
inadequate,	to	modify	our	opinion.	Our	conclusions	are	based	on	the	audit	evidence	
obtained	up	to	the	date	of	our	auditor’s	report.	However,	future	events	or	conditions	
may	cause	the	Company	to	cease	to	continue	as	a	going	concern.	
	

 Evaluate	 the	 overall	 presentation,	 structure	 and	 content	 of	 the	 Ind	 AS	 financial	
statements,	 including	the	disclosures,	and	whether	the	Ind	AS	financial	statements	
represent	 the	 underlying	 transactions	 and	 events	 in	 a	 manner	 that	 achieves	 fair	
presentation.	

	
Materiality	is	the	magnitude	of	misstatements	in	the	financial	statements	that,	individually	
or	 in	 aggregate,	 makes	 it	 probable	 that	 the	 economic	 decisions	 of	 a	 reasonably	
knowledgeable	user	of	the	financial	statements	may	be	influenced.	We	consider	quantitative	
materiality	 and	 qualitative	 factors	 in	 (i)	 planning	 the	 scope	 of	 our	 audit	 work	 and	 in	
evaluating	 the	 results	 of	 our	 work;	 and	 (ii)	 to	 evaluate	 the	 effect	 of	 any	 identified	
misstatements	in	the	financial	statements.	
	
We	communicate	with	those	charged	with	governance	regarding,	among	other	matters,	the	
planned	scope	and	timing	of	the	audit	and	significant	audit	findings,	including	any	significant	
deficiencies	in	internal	control	that	we	identify	during	our	audit.	
	
We	also	provide	those	charged	with	governance	with	a	statement	that	we	have	complied	
with	relevant	ethical	requirements	regarding	independence,	and	to	communicate	with	them	
all	 relationships	 and	 other	 matters	 that	 may	 reasonably	 be	 thought	 to	 bear	 on	 our	
independence,	and	where	applicable,	related	safeguards.	
	
Report	on	Other	Legal	and	Regulatory	Requirements		
	
1.	As	required	by	the	Companies	(Auditor’s	Report)	Order,	2016	(“the	Order”)	issued	by	the	
Central	Government	of	India	in	terms	of	sub‐section	(11)	of	section	143	of	the	Act,	we	give	
in	the	“Annexure	A”,	a	statement	on	the	matters	specified	in	the	paragraph	3	and	4	of	the	
order.		
	
2.	As	required	by	Section	143	(3)	of	the	Act,	we	report	that:		

a. We	have	sought	and	obtained	all	the	information	and	explanations	which	to	the	best	
of	our	knowledge	and	belief	were	necessary	for	the	purposes	of	our	audit;	

b. In	our	opinion	proper	books	of	account	as	required	by	 law	have	been	kept	by	 the	
Company	so	far	as	it	appears	from	our	examination	of	those	books;	



 
 

 

c. The	Balance	Sheet,	 the	Statement	of	Profit	 and	Loss	and	 the	Cash	Flow	Statement	
dealt	with	by	this	Report	are	in	agreement	with	the	books	of	account;	

d. In	 our	 opinion,	 the	 aforesaid	 Ind	 AS	 financial	 statements	 comply	with	 the	 Indian	
Accounting	Standards	specified	under	Section	133	of	the	Act,	read	with	Rule	7	of	the	
Companies	(Accounts)	Rules,	2014.	

e. On	the	basis	of	the	written	representations	received	from	the	directors	as	on	March	
31,	 2020	 taken	 on	 record	 by	 the	 Board	 of	 Directors,	 none	 of	 the	 directors	 is	
disqualified	 as	 on	March	31,	 2020	 from	being	 appointed	 as	 a	director	 in	 terms	of	
Section	164(2)	of	the	Act;	

f. With	respect	to	the	adequacy	of	the	internal	financial	controls	over	financial	reporting	
of	the	Company	and	the	operating	effectiveness	of	such	controls,	refer	to	our	separate	
report	 in	 “Annexure	 B”.	 Our	 report	 expresses	 an	 unmodified	 opinion	 on	 the	
adequacy	 and	operating	 effectiveness	of	 the	Company’s	 internal	 financial	 controls	
over	financial	reporting.	

g. With	respect	to	the	other	matters	to	be	included	in	the	Auditor’s	Report	in	accordance	
with	Rule	11	of	the	Companies	(Audit	and	Auditors)	Rules,	2014,	in	our	opinion	and	
to	the	best	of	our	information	and	according	to	the	explanations	given	to	us:		

i. The	Company	does	not	have	any	pending	litigations	which	would	impact	its	
financial	position.;	

ii. The	 Company	 did	 not	 have	 any	 long‐term	 contracts	 including	 derivative	
contracts	for	which	there	were	any	material	foreseeable	losses;	and	

iii. There	 has	 been	 no	 delay	 in	 transferring	 amounts,	 required	 to	 be	
transferred,	to	the	Investor	Education	and	Protection	Fund	by	the	Company	

	
	
For	Shah	&	Shah	
Chartered	Accountants	
(Firm’s	Registration	Number	131527W)	
	
	
	
Tejas	C.	Shah	
Partner	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 													Date:	 July	13,	2020	
Membership	No.	135639	 	 	 	 	 	 													Place:	Ahmedabad	
UDIN:	20135639AAAACV3469	
	
	
	
	
	
	



 
 

 

Annexure	‐	A	to	the	Auditors’	Report		
	
The	Annexure	referred	to	in	Independent	Auditors’	Report	to	the	members	of	the	Company	
on	the	Ind	AS	financial	statements	for	the	year	ended	March	31,	2020,	we	report	that:		

(i) In	respect	of	the	Company’s	fixed	assets:	

(a)	 The	 Company	 has	maintained	 proper	 records	 showing	 full	 particulars,	 including			
quantitative	details	and	situation	of	fixed	assets	on	the	basis	of	available	information.	

(b)	According	to	the	information	and	explanation	given	to	us,	the	fixed	assets	have	been	
physically	 verified	 by	 the	 management	 once	 in	 a	 year	 which	 in	 our	 opinion	 is	
reasonable,	having	regards	to	the	size	of	the	Company	and	nature	of	its	business.	No	
material	discrepancies	have	been	noticed	on	such	verifications.	

(c)	According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us	and	on	the	basis	of	our	
examination	of	the	records	of	the	Company,	the	title	deeds	of	immovable	properties	
are	held	in	the	name	of	the	Company.	

(ii) According	to	the	information	furnished	and	explanations	given	to	us,	the	company	does	
not	have	any	physical	inventories	for	year	ended	March	31,	2020.	Accordingly,	reporting	
under	clause	3	(ii)	of	the	Order	is	not	applicable	to	the	Company.	

(iii) As	per	the	information	furnished,	the	Company	has	not	granted	loans	whether	secured	or	
unsecured	 to	 persons	 covered	 in	 the	 Register,	 maintained	 under	 Section	 189	 of	 the	
Companies	Act,	2013;	

(iv) In	 our	 opinion	 and	 according	 to	 the	 information	 and	 explanations	 given	 to	 us,	 the	
Company	has	complied	with	the	provisions	of	Sections	185	and	186	of	the	Act	in	respect	
of	 grant	 of	 loans,	 making	 investments	 and	 providing	 guarantees	 and	 securities,	 as	
applicable.	

(v) In	 our	 opinion	 and	 according	 to	 the	 information	 and	 explanations	 given	 to	 us,	 the	
Company	has	not	accepted	any	deposit	and	hence	the	provisions	of	Section	73	to	76	or	
any	other	relevant	provisions	of	 the	Companies	Act	and	the	Companies	(Acceptance	of	
Deposits)	 Rules,	 2014,	with	 regard	 to	 the	 deposits	 accepted	 are	 not	 applicable	 to	 the	
Company.	 Therefore,	 the	 provisions	 of	 clause	 (v)	 of	 paragraph	 3	 of	 the	Order	 are	 not	
applicable	to	the	company.	

(vi) In	our	opinion	and	according	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us	and	based	
on	books	of	account,	maintenance	of	cost	records	under	section	148(1)	of	the	Companies	
Act,	2013	is	not	applicable	to	the	company	and	hence	paragraph	3(vi)	of	the	Order	is	not	
applicable.	

(vii) According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	in	respect	of	statutory	dues:		



 
 

 

(a) The	Company	has	been	 generally	 regular	 in	depositing	undisputed	 statutory	dues	
including	Income	Tax,	Goods	and	Service	Tax	(GST)	and	any	other	statutory	dues	with	
the	appropriate	authorities.	

(b) There	were	no	undisputed	amounts	payable	in	respect	of	Provident	Fund,	Employees’	
State	Insurance,	Income	Tax,	Goods	and	Service	Tax,	Customs	Duty,	Cess	and	other	
material	statutory	dues	in	arrears	as	at	March	31,	2020	for	a	period	of	more	than	six	
months	from	the	date	they	became	payable.	

(c) According	 to	 the	 information	 and	 explanations	 given	 to	 us,	 there	 are	 no	 dues	 of	
Income‐tax	or	Central	Sales	Tax	or	Service	tax	or	Goods	and	Services	tax	or	Duty	of	
Excise	or	Value	added	tax	which	have	not	been	deposited	by	the	Company	on	account	
of	disputes.	

(viii) In	our	opinion	and	according	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	the	Company	
has	not	borrowed	money	from	financial	institution,	banks	Government	or	through	issue	of	
debentures.	 Hence,	 reporting	 under	 clause	 3(viii)	 of	 the	 Order	 is	 not	 applicable	 to	 the	
Company.	

(ix) In	our	opinion	and	according	to	the	information	and	explanation	given	to	us,	no	term	loans	
has	been	availed	by	the	company,	hence	purpose	of	question	of	proper	utilization	does	not	
arise.		

(x) According	 to	 the	 information	 and	 explanation	 given	 to	 us,	 the	 Company	 has	 not	 raised	
moneys	by	way	of	initial	public	offer	or	further	public	offer	(including	debt	instruments)	or	
term	loans	and	hence	reporting	under	this	clause	of	the	Order	is	not	applicable.	

(xi) Based	 upon	 the	 audit	 procedures	 performed	 and	 according	 to	 the	 information	 and	
explanations	given	by	the	management,	we	report	that	no	fraud	on	or	by	the	Company	has	
been	noticed	or	reported	during	the	course	of	our	audit.	

(xii) According	to	the	information	and	explanations	give	to	us	and	based	on	our	examination	of	
the	 records	 of	 the	 Company,	 the	 Company	 has	 not	 paid/provided	 for	 managerial	
remuneration	 in	 accordance	with	 the	 requisite	 approvals	mandated	by	 the	provisions	of	
section	197	read	with	Schedule	V	to	the	Companies	Act,	2013.	

(xiii) The	Company	is	not	a	Nidhi	company	and	hence	reporting	under	clause	3(xii)	of	the	Order	
is	not	applicable.	

(xiv)According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us	and	based	on	our	examination	of	
the	records	of	the	Company,	 transactions	with	 the	related	parties	are	 in	compliance	with	
sections	177	and	188	of	the	Act	where	applicable	and	details	of	such	transactions	have	been	
disclosed	in	the	financial	statements	as	required	by	the	applicable	Ind	AS.	

(xv) According	to	the	information	and	explanations	give	to	us	and	based	on	our	examination	of	
the	records	of	the	Company,	the	Company	has	not	made	any	preferential	allotment	or	private	
placement	of	shares	or	fully	or	partly	convertible	debentures	during	the	year.	

(xvi)According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us	and	based	on	our	examination	of	
the	records	of	the	Company,	the	Company	has	not	entered	into	non‐cash	transactions	with	

	



 
 

 

directors	or	persons	connected	with	him	and	hence	provision	of	section	192	of	the	Act	is	not	
applicable.		

(xvii) The	Company	is	not	required	to	be	registered	under	section	45‐IA	of	the	Reserve	Bank	of	
India	Act	1934.		

	
For	Shah	&	Shah	
Chartered	Accountants	
(Firm’s	Registration	Number	131527W)	
	
Tejas	C.	Shah	
Partner	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 																					Date	 	:	 	July	13,	2020	
Membership	No.	135639	 	 	 	 	 	 																					Place		:	Ahmedabad	
UDIN:	20135639AAAACV3469	
	
Annexure	‐	B	to	the	Auditors’	Report		
	
Report	on	the	Internal	Financial	Controls	under	Clause	(i)	of	Sub‐section	3	of	Section	143	of	
the	Companies	Act,	2013	(“the	Act”)		
	
We	have	audited	the	internal	financial	controls	over	financial	reporting	of	Konndor	Industries	
Limited	(“the	Company”)	as	of	March	31,	2020	in	conjunction	with	our	audit	of	the	Ind	AS	financial	
statements	of	the	Company	for	the	year	ended	on	that	date.		
	
Management’s	Responsibility	for	Internal	Financial	Controls		
	
The	 Company’s	management	 is	 responsible	 for	 establishing	 and	maintaining	 internal	 financial	
controls	based	on	the	internal	control	over	financial	reporting	criteria	established	by	the	Company	
considering	the	essential	components	of	internal	control	stated	in	the	Guidance	Note	on	Audit	of	
Internal	 Financial	 Controls	 over	 Financial	 Reporting	 issued	 by	 the	 Institute	 of	 Chartered	
Accountants	 of	 India	 (‘ICAI’).	 These	 responsibilities	 include	 the	 design,	 implementation	 and	
maintenance	of	adequate	internal	financial	controls	that	were	operating	effectively	for	ensuring	
the	orderly	and	efficient	conduct	of	its	business,	including	adherence	to	company’s	policies,	the	
safeguarding	of	 its	assets,	 the	prevention	and	detection	of	 frauds	and	errors,	 the	accuracy	and	
completeness	 of	 the	 accounting	 records,	 and	 the	 timely	 preparation	 of	 reliable	 financial	
information,	as	required	under	the	Companies	Act,	2013.			
	
Auditors’	Responsibility		
	
Our	 responsibility	 is	 to	 express	 an	 opinion	 on	 the	 Company's	 internal	 financial	 controls	 over	
financial	reporting	based	on	our	audit.	We	conducted	our	audit	in	accordance	with	the	Guidance	
Note	on	Audit	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	over	Financial	Reporting	(the	“Guidance	Note”)	and	
the	Standards	on	Auditing,	issued	by	ICAI	and	deemed	to	be	prescribed	under	section	143(10)	of	
the	Companies	Act,	2013,	to	the	extent	applicable	to	an	audit	of	internal	financial	controls,	both	
applicable	to	an	audit	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	and,	both	issued	by	the	Institute	of	Chartered	
Accountants	of	India.	Those	Standards	and	the	Guidance	Note	require	that	we	comply	with	ethical	



 
 

 

requirements	 and	 plan	 and	 perform	 the	 audit	 to	 obtain	 reasonable	 assurance	 about	 whether	
adequate	internal	financial	controls	over	financial	reporting	was	established	and	maintained	and	
if	such	controls	operated	effectively	in	all	material	respects.		
	
Our	 audit	 involves	performing	procedures	 to	 obtain	 audit	 evidence	 about	 the	 adequacy	of	 the	
internal	financial	controls	system	over	financial	reporting	and	their	operating	effectiveness.	Our	
audit	of	internal	financial	controls	over	financial	reporting	included	obtaining	an	understanding	
of	internal	financial	controls	over	financial	reporting,	assessing	the	risk	that	a	material	weakness	
exists,	and	testing	and	evaluating	the	design	and	operating	effectiveness	of	internal	control	based	
on	 the	assessed	risk.	The	procedures	selected	depend	on	the	auditor’s	 judgment,	 including	 the	
assessment	of	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	Ind	AS	financial	statements,	whether	due	
to	fraud	or	error.	
	
We	believe	that	the	audit	evidence	we	have	obtained	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	
basis	 for	 our	 audit	 opinion	 on	 the	 Company’s	 internal	 financial	 controls	 system	over	 financial	
reporting.		
	
Meaning	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	over	Financial	Reporting	
		
A	Company's	internal	financial	control	over	financial	reporting	is	a	process	designed	to	provide	
reasonable	 assurance	 regarding	 the	 reliability	 of	 financial	 reporting	 and	 the	 preparation	 of	
financial	 statements	 for	 external	 purposes	 in	 accordance	 with	 generally	 accepted	 accounting	
principles.	A	Company's	internal	financial	control	over	financial	reporting	includes	those	policies	
and	procedures	that	(1)	pertain	to	the	maintenance	of	records	that,	in	reasonable	detail,	accurately	
and	 fairly	 reflect	 the	 transactions	 and	 dispositions	 of	 the	 assets	 of	 the	 company;	 (2)	 provide	
reasonable	 assurance	 that	 transactions	 are	 recorded	 as	 necessary	 to	 permit	 preparation	 of	
financial	 statements	 in	 accordance	 with	 generally	 accepted	 accounting	 principles,	 and	 that	
receipts	and	expenditures	of	the	company	are	being	made	only	in	accordance	with	authorizations	
of	management	and	directors	of	the	company;	and	(3)	provide	reasonable	assurance	regarding	
prevention	or	timely	detection	of	unauthorized	acquisition,	use,	or	disposition	of	the	company's	
assets	that	could	have	a	material	effect	on	the	financial	statements.	
	
Inherent	Limitations	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	Over	Financial	Reporting		
	
Because	of	the	inherent	limitations	of	internal	financial	controls	over	financial	reporting,	including	
the	possibility	of	collusion	or	improper	management	override	of	controls,	material	misstatements	
due	to	error	or	fraud	may	occur	and	not	be	detected.	Also,	projections	of	any	evaluation	of	the	
internal	financial	controls	over	financial	reporting	to	future	periods	are	subject	to	the	risk	that	the	
internal	financial	control	over	financial	reporting	may	become	inadequate	because	of	changes	in	
conditions,	or	that	the	degree	of	compliance	with	the	policies	or	procedures	may	deteriorate.		
	
Opinion		
	
In	our	opinion,	the	Company	has,	in	all	material	respects,	an	adequate	internal	financial	controls	
system	over	financial	reporting	and	such	internal	financial	controls	over	financial	reporting	were	
operating	effectively	as	at	March	31,	2020	based	on	the	internal	control	over	financial	reporting	



 
 

 

criteria	 established	 by	 the	 Company	 considering	 the	 essential	 components	 of	 internal	 control	
stated	in	the	Guidance	Note	on	Audit	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	Over	Financial	Reporting	issued	
by	the	Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	India.			
	
For	Shah	&	Shah	
Chartered	Accountants	
(Firm’s	Registration	Number	131527W)	
	
	
Tejas	C.	Shah	 	
Partner	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 																					Date:	 July	 13,	 2020	
Membership	No.	135639	 	 	 	 	 	 																					Place:	Ahmedabad	
UDIN:	20135639AAAACV3469	

	

	 	



(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Note
Year Ended March 31, 

2020
Year Ended March 31, 

2019

ASSETS
I. Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 4                              65,114                               5,005 
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4                         33,21,885 
(c) Deferred Tax Assets 27                         34,27,009                        35,53,145 
 (d) Other Non-current assets  5                           5,87,090                          1,58,268 

                      74,01,098                      37,16,418 

II.Current assets 
(a) Inventories                                     -                                      -   
(b) Financial assets

 (i) Trade Receivables 6                      2,81,72,168                     4,45,13,119 
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7                           1,25,554                          5,46,198 
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8                         36,35,000                        46,36,651 

(c) Other Current Assets 9                      4,30,76,302                   12,07,98,884 
                   7,50,09,024                 17,04,94,852 

Total Assets                    8,24,10,123                 17,42,11,271 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 10                      5,50,40,000                     5,50,40,000 
(b) Other equity 11                      2,14,46,284                     2,19,30,682 

                   7,64,86,284                   7,69,70,682 
LIABILITIES 
I. Non-current liabilities

(a) Provisions 12                           1,05,520                          1,30,545 
                        1,05,520                        1,30,545 

II.Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Trade  Payables 13                         27,68,342                     7,35,48,570 
    (ii) Other Financial Liabilities 14                         20,67,370                     1,41,83,850 

(b) Other current liabilities 15                           8,75,283                        93,25,556 
(c) Provisions 16                           1,07,324                             52,068 

                      58,18,319                   9,71,10,044 

Total Equity and Liabilities                    8,24,10,123                 17,42,11,271 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date.

For Shah & Shah
Chartered Accountants Konndor Industries Limited
(Firm Reg. No. :  131527W)

Tejas C. Shah
Partner Santoshkumar Pandey Shashikant Thakar
M No. 135639 Director and CFO Director

DIN - 08415079 DIN : 02887471
Date : July 13, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad

Sanjay Gupta Udit Vora
Whole Time Director Company Secretary
DIN - 08415091 A38017

Date : July 13, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad

KONNDOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CIN - L51100GJ1983PLC006041
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

(Formerly Known as Arms Paper Limited)



(Amount in Rupees)
Particulars Note  For the period ended 

March 31,2020 
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2019 

I Revenue from Operations 17                    12,10,29,481                 51,74,09,334 
II Other Income 18                                1,165                      11,67,435 
III Total income (I+II) 12,10,30,646                 51,85,76,769              

IV Expenses
(a) Purchase of Traded Goods ( Including 
Direct Expenses)

11,38,78,496                   50,85,92,830                

(b) Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods, 
Work in Progress and Traded Goods

19 -                                  3,31,723                       

(c) Employee benefit expense 20 22,00,752                        33,14,283                     
(d) Finance Costs -                                  -                               
(e) Depreciation and amortization expense 4 10,746                             -                               

(f) Other expense 21 52,56,234                        53,97,498                     
Total expense (IV) 12,13,46,228                 51,76,36,334              

V Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items & 
Tax (III-IV)

(3,15,582)                       9,40,435                     

VI Exceptional items -                                  -                               

VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI) (3,15,582)                       9,40,435                     

VIII Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax -                                  2,42,162                       
(2) Deferred Tax (70,860)                            (8,790)                           
(3) Prior Period Tax Expense 2,39,677                          -                               
Income tax expense (VIII) 1,68,817                       2,33,372                     

VIII Profit/(loss)  for the period (VII-VIII) (4,84,399)                       7,07,063                     

IX Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be recalssified to profit or 
loss

-                                  -                               

Items that will be recalssified to profit or loss (13,132)                            (2,550)                           

Income tax relating to items that will be 
classified to profit or loss

-                                  -                               

Total Other Comprehensive Income (IX) (13,132)                         (2,550)                         

X Total Comprehensive Income for the year 
(VIII+IX)

(4,97,531)                       7,04,513                     

XI Earnings per equity share (Face Value of Rs 10 
each)

30 (0.09)                           0.13                         

Basic & Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date.

For Shah & Shah
Chartered Accountants Konndor Industries Limited
(Firm Reg. No. :  131527W)

Tejas C. Shah Santoshkumar Pandey Shashikant Thakar
Partner Director and CFO Director
M No. 135639 DIN - 08415079 DIN : 02887471

Date : July 13, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad

Sanjay Gupta Udit Vora
Whole Time Director Company Secretary
DIN - 08415091 A38017

Date : July 13, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad

KONNDOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CIN - L51100GJ1983PLC006041
Statement of Profit & Loss for the period ended March 31, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

(Formerly Known as Arms Paper Limited)



 Year Ended March 31, 
2020 

 Year Ended March 31, 
2019 

Audited Audited
(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) for the year after Tax                            (4,84,399)                              7,07,063 
Adjustment for

Tax Expense                             1,68,817                              2,33,372 
Increase / (Decrease) in Non Current Assets                            (4,71,503)                             (1,40,980)
Depreciation                               (10,746)                                        -

Operating profit/ (loss)  before working capital changes                         (7,97,831)                          7,99,454 

Adjustments for changes in working capital:
Inventories                                        -                                3,31,724 
Trade Receivables                        1,63,40,951                       10,10,61,922 
Other current assets                        7,87,24,233                      (12,22,09,191)
Trade Payables                       (7,07,80,228)                           (27,92,806)
Other current liabilities                       (2,05,66,753)                         2,29,62,392 
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions                                30,231                                 86,321 
Cash generated from /(used in) operations                           29,50,603                              2,39,816 
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)                                        -                                          -
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A)                           29,50,603                              2,39,816 

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets                               (49,363)
Changes in Capital Work in Progress                          (33,21,885)                                        -
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B)                       (33,71,248)                                    -  

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Cost                                        -                                          -
Proceeds/Repayment from short-term borrowings
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (c)                                    -                                      -  

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B 
+ C)

                        (4,20,644)                          2,39,816 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                             5,46,198                              3,06,381 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                          1,25,554                          5,46,198 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand                                18,278                                   8,515
With banks- on current account                             1,07,276                              5,37,683 

Total cash and cash equivalents                          1,25,554                          5,46,198 

For Shah & Shah
Chartered Accountants Konndor Industries Limited
(Firm Reg. No. :  131527W)

Tejas C. Shah Santoshkumar Pandey Shashikant Thakar
Partner Director and CFO Director
M No. 135639 DIN - 08415079 DIN : 02887471

Date : July 13, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad

Sanjay Gupta Udit Vora
Whole Time Director Company Secretary
DIN - 08415091 A38017

Date : July 13, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

KONNDOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIN: L51100GJ1983PLC006041)
(Formerly known as Arms Paper Limited)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on March 31, 2020
(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars



A. Equity Share Capital

 Particulars  No. of Shares 
 Amount

(Rs) 
Balance as at April 1, 2018 55,18,200                   5,50,40,000    
Changes during the year - -                   
Balance as at March 31, 2019 55,18,200                   5,50,40,000    
Changes during the year - -                   
Balance as at March 31, 2020 55,18,200                   5,50,40,000    

B. Other Equity
(Amount in Rupees)

 Particulars 
 Other Comprehen-sive 

Income  Total 
 Capital 
Reserves  Retained Earnings 

Balance as at April 1, 2018 54,67,796         1,57,55,824                      -                                 2,12,23,620     
Profit for the year 7,07,063                           -                                 7,07,063          
Balance as at March 31, 2019 54,67,796         1,64,62,887                      -                                 2,19,30,683     
Profit / (Loss) for the year (4,84,399)                          -                                 (4,84,399)         
Balance as at March 31, 2020 54,67,796       1,59,78,487                   -                              2,14,46,284    

For Shah & Shah For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Konndor Industries Limited
(Firm Reg. No. :  131527W)

Tejas C. Shah Santoshkumar Pandey Shashikant Thakar
Partner Director and CFO Director

M No. 135639 DIN - 08415079 DIN : 02887471

Date : July 13, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad

Sanjay Gupta Udit Vora
Whole Time Director Company Secretary
DIN - 08415091 A38017

Date : July 13, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad

 Reserves & Surplus 

KONNDOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN - L51100GJ1983PLC006041

 Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended  March 31, 2020 



Company Overview & Significant Accounting Policies

1

2
(a) 

(b)

(c) 

(d) 

(e)

(f) Use of Estimates and Judgments
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, incomes and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Going Concern

The board of directors have considered the financial position of the Company as at March 31,
2020.The board of directors have taken actions to ensure that appropriate long-term cash resources
are in place at the date of signing the accounts to fund the Company's operations.

Presentation of financial statements
The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared

and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The
Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7
“Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet
and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of
notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed
under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended.

Reporting Entity 
Konndor Industries Limited is a public limited company has been incorporated under the provisions of the

Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at Ahmedabad, Gujarat. Its shares are listed on the stock

exchange. The company is primarily engaged in trading and marketing of paper.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’)
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in note 3 of the Financial statements.

Estimates
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical
experience and other factors including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to the
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant

effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the respective note.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the functional

currency. All the amounts have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.
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Financial 
assets at
FVTPL 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

iv

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and measures at its fair value except trade
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss. A regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade
date.

Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses

Derecognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

-  the contractual terms of a financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
► Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition except if and in

the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Measurement

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

► Those measured at amortized cost and Those to be measured subsequently at fair value

(either through other comprehensive income or through profit or loss)
The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial

assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
►  A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions

and is not designated as at Fair Value through Profit and Loss Account (FVTPL):
-  the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
contractual cash flows; and

Significant 
Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties:
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting

in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the respective note.
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If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Useful lives have been determined in accordance with Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.
Capital Work-in-progress includes cost of assets at sites and constructions expenditure.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off set and the net amount presented in the
Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses, if any,
except freehold land which is carried at historical cost.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import

duties and nonrefundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any

directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and

estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working
condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or
loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or
loss. 

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with

modified terms is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance

sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred

assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial Liabilities
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c.

d.
i

The Company recognizes loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost using
expected credit loss model. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost
are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

For trade receivables, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of
related finished products.

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are
not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated
that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value.
The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
Excess/shortages if any, arising on physical verification are absorbed in the respective consumption

accounts.

Impairment
Impairment of Financial Assets

We have no Inventory Stock on hand as at the end of the year.

Derecognition
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised upon disposal.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories includes

expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs

incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. In the case of manufactured

inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of fixed production overheads

based on normal operating capacity.

Cost of raw materials, stores and spares are determined on First In First Out (FIFO) basis

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation/Amortisation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other than freehold

land and properties under construction) less their estimated residual values over their estimated

useful lives using the straight-line method and is generally recognised in the statement of profit

and loss. Amortization on leasehold land is provided over the period of lease.
Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management
believes that its estimates of useful lives best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets.
Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

 Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work 
in progress. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet 
date are disclosed as Other Non-Current Assets

Capital work in progress and Capital advances:



ii Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company
reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 360 days past due. The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full.

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of Allowance for Expected Credit Losses in the Balance Sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the

extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company

determines (on the basis of availability of the information) that the debtor does not have assets or

sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the

write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement

activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

For all other financial assets, the Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to
twelve months expected credit losses unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
from initial recognition in which those are measured at lifetime expected credit risk.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial asset. Twelve months expected credit losses are the
portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represent the expected credit losses that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the twelve months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than twelve
months).

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.



e.
i.

ii

f.

g.

h

i. Current Tax

ii Deferred Tax

Income Tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and
tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a
net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control over, or managerial involvement with, the
goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

Long term Employee Benefits:
Provident Fund and Superannuation Contribution are accrued each year in terms of contracts
with the employees. Provision for Gratuity is determined and accrued on the basis of actuarial
valuation by Life Insurance Corporation of India. Leave encashment benefit to employees has been
provided on an estimated basis.

Provisions (other than Employee Benefits), Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal obligation as a result of past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of
which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. A contingent asset is neither recognized nor
disclosed if inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits
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Borrowing Cost
Borrowing cost are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost) incurred
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are capitalised as part of cost of asset until such time the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit attributable to equity
shareholders (after adjustment for diluted earnings) by average number of weighted equity shares
outstanding during the year plus potential equity shares.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method whereby the profit before tax is adjusted for the
effect of the transactions of a non cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past and future operating
cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence
that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to
the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with
banks and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to know amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original maturity is
three months or less.
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The outbreak of Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant
disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Company is monitoring the impact of global
health pandemic on its financial position and liquidity. The Company used the principles of prudence
in applying judgements, estimates and assumptions based on the current estimates. The Company
has considered wherever applicable the possible effects on the carrying amounts of trade receivables,
other current assets as on March 31, 2020. Based on the current indicators of future economic
conditions, the management expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets in full without any
loss. However, the impact of COVID 19 on the Company's Financial Statements may differ from that
estimated as of the date of approval of these financial statement and management will continue to
closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Estimation of ucertainities relating to global health pandemic from COVID-19



Note - 4 Property, Plant & Equipments

Sr Particulars CWIP
Office 

Equipment
Air 

Conditioner
Computer Mobile Total

* Includes 
assets 

retired from 
active use

1 Deemed Cost of Asset

As at March 31, 2018                -                290           30,000         3,891           -           34,181          34,181 

Addition                -                  -   

Disposal/Adjustments                -                  -   
As at March 31, 2019                -               290          30,000        3,891           -          34,181         34,181 
Addition    33,21,885       17,373    53,482    33,92,740     33,92,740 

Disposal/Adjustments                -   

As at March 31, 2020   33,21,885             290          30,000      21,264   53,482   34,26,921    34,26,921 

2 Depreciation                -   

As at March 31, 2018                -                  -             29,176               -             -           29,176          29,176 

Charge for the period                -                  -                     -                 -             -                  -   

Disposal/Adjustments                -   
As at March 31, 2019                -                  -            29,176              -             -          29,176         29,176 
Charge for the period                -                  -                     -              723    10,023         10,746          10,746 

Disposal/Adjustments

As at March 31, 2020                -                  -            29,176           723   10,023        39,922         39,922 

3 Net Block                -   

 As at March 31, 2019                -                290                824         3,891           -             5,005            5,005 

As at March 31, 2020   33,21,885             290               824      20,541   43,459   33,86,999    33,86,999 

  Konndor Industries Limited (CIN: L51100GJ1983PLC006041)
(Formerly known as Arms Paper Limited) 



Note 5 - Other Non-Current Assets
Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019
(a) Security Deposit :
     Rent Deposit 3,46,980             1,56,980              
    
(b) Others
    Balances with government authorities 1,288                  1,288                  
Advance Tax (Net of Provision) 2,38,822             -                      

5,87,090           1,58,268            

Note 6 - Trade Receivables
Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019
Current Trade Receivables
        Unsecured, considered good 2,81,72,168        4,45,13,119         

2,81,72,168      4,45,13,119       

Note 7 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019

Cash on hand 18,278                8,515                  
Balance with Banks - In current account 1,07,276             5,37,683              

1,25,554           5,46,198            

Note 8 - Other Financial Assets
Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019

Advances recoverable in cash or kind 36,35,000           46,36,651            

36,35,000         46,36,651          

Note 9 - Other Current Assets
Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019

Advance to suppliers & creditors for expenses 4,30,06,888        12,07,78,084       
Balances with government authorities 69,414                10,800                 
Advance to Employees -                     10,000                 

4,30,76,302      12,07,98,884     

Note 10 - Share Capital
Particulars

Number  Rs Number  Rs 
Authorised Share capital

60,00,000         6,00,00,000   60,00,000           6,00,00,000         
6,00,00,000   6,00,00,000         

55,18,200         5,51,82,000   55,18,200           5,51,82,000         
Less: Calls in Arrears (1,42,000)       (1,42,000)             

55,18,200       5,50,40,000  55,18,200         5,50,40,000       

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

As at Mar 31, 2019As at Mar 31, 2020

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Share 
Capital



Particulars
Number  Rs  Number  Rs 

55,18,200         5,51,82,000   55,18,200           5,51,82,000         

-                   -                 -                     -                      
-                   -                 -                     -                      

         55,18,200    5,51,82,000            55,18,200          5,51,82,000 

(b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

(c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company
Particulars

Name of Equity Share 
Holders

No of shares % of Holding No of shares % of Holding 

Devkant Synthetics (India) Pvt Ltd 6,85,000           12.41% 6,85,000             12.41%
Riya Vinit Agrawal 6,65,104           12.05% 6,65,104             12.05%
Vinit Kumar Pawan Kumar Agrawal 6,47,446           11.73% 6,47,446             11.73%
Anilkumar Jain 6,28,649           11.39% 6,28,649             11.39%

Note 11 - Other Equity
Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019
Other Reserves
Capital Reserve 54,67,796           54,67,796            

54,67,796         54,67,796          
Surplus
Surplus Balance as per last balance sheet date 1,64,62,887        1,57,55,824         
Transferred from Profit and Loss account (4,84,399)            7,07,062              
Balance at the end of the year 1,59,78,488      1,64,62,887       

2,14,46,284      2,19,30,682       

Note 12 - Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019
Non-Current Provisions
 Provision for gratuity 1,05,520             66,988                 
 Provision for leave encashment -                     63,557                 

1,05,520           1,30,545            

Note 13 - Trade Payables
Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019

Trade Payable ( Including Creditors for Expenses) 27,68,342           7,35,48,570         

27,68,342         7,35,48,570       

As at Mar 31, 2019

(As at March 31, 2020 there are no amounts outstanding inrespect of
suppliers registered as micro and small enterprises under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006)

(a) Reconciliation of the nos of shares & amount outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of 
the year 
Add: Shares Issued during the year 
Shares bought back during the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the 
year

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs10 per share. Each holder of equity
share is entitled to one vote per share and ranks pari passu.In the event of liquidation, the equity share holders
are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential dues, in
proportion to their shareholding.

As at Mar 31, 2019As at Mar 31, 2020

As at Mar 31, 2020



Note 14- Other Finanical Liability
Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019

Trade Deposits 19,28,370           1,41,70,000         
Other Payable 1,39,000             13,850                 

20,67,370         1,41,83,850       

Note 15 - Other Current Liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019

Advance from Customers -                     89,81,791            
Duties and Taxes 1,13,447             1,61,112              
Salary Payable 3,61,836             1,82,653              
Advance Against Fixed Assets 4,00,000             -                      

8,75,283           93,25,556          

Note 16 - Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019
Current Provisions
Provision for employee Benefits
         Bonus 66,887                49,292                 
         Gratuity 1,852                  279                     
         Leave encashment 38,585                2,497                  

1,07,324           52,068               



Note 17 - Revenue From Operations
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Sales of Products 11,67,34,064     51,74,09,334    
Sales Commission 42,95,417          -                    

12,10,29,481   51,74,09,334  

Note 18 - Other Income
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Interest Income -                    11,51,835         
Other Misc Income 1,165                15,600              

1,165               11,67,435       

Note 19 - Changes In Inventory Of Finished Goods, Work In Progress And Traded Goods
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Stock at the beginning of Year
Traded Goods -                    3,31,724           

Total (a) -                   3,31,724         

Stock at the end of Year
Traded Goods -                    -                    

Total (b) -                   -                  

-                   3,31,724         

Note 20 - Employee Benefits Expense
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Salaries, wages, bonus 21,73,595          32,91,783         
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 27,157               22,500              

22,00,752        33,14,283       

Note 21 - Other Expenses
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Software Renewal Expenses 10,800               10,800              
Payment to auditors (Note 28) 60,000               40,000              
Rent expenses 6,50,940            6,57,690           
Legal & Professional expenses 19,75,134          20,82,853         
Admin & General Expenses 3,80,394            3,98,694           
Power and Fuel 93,810               30,550              
Donation 6,900                12,500              
Travelling & Conveyance 51,997               41,185              
Interest and Penalty on Taxes 62,763               2,944                
Repairs and Maintenance 1,33,685            1,23,585           
Rates and Taxes 2,400                34,522              
Selling, distribution, freight & forwarding expenses 16,90,069          19,35,483         
Balances written off -                     -   
Bank Charges 5,099                4,177                
Miscellaneous expenses 1,32,243            22,515              

52,56,234        53,97,498       

Note 22 - Related Party Disclosure

Holding, Subsidiaries, Fellow Subsidiaries, and Associates
1) Holding Company None
2) Subsidiaries: None
3) Fellow Subsidiary: None
4) Associates: None

The Management has identified the following entities and individuals as related parties of the Company for the year ended March 31, 
2020 for the purposes of reporting as per Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures, which are as under:

Net Changes in Inventory ( a-b)



Key Management Personnel
1 Santoshkumar Pandey (Director & CFO)
2 Sanjay Gupta (Whole Time Director)
3 Shashikant Thakar (Director)
4 Udit Vora (Company Secretary)

None
None

Amount (in Rs.)
Name of Related Party 2019-20 2018-19
Santoshkumar Pandey 1,35,000             NIL 

Key Management Personnel Udit Vora 4,800                 NIL 
 

Amount (in Rs.)
Name of Related Party March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Key Management Personnel Santoshkumar Pandey               75,000  NIL 

Note 23 - Contingent liabilities and commitments

Note 24 - Segment Reporting

Note 25 - Note on Corporate Social Responsibility

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is Rs.Nil.

(b) Amount spent by the Company during the year is Rs.Nil.

Note 26 - Tax Expenses

(a) - Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax 2019-20 2018-19

Provision for Current Tax                       -              2,42,162 

Excess provision for current tax of earlier years written back            2,39,677                      -   

Net Deferred Tax               (70,860)                (8,790)

Income tax expense for the year           1,68,817          2,33,372 

(b) - Deferred Tax
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Deferred Tax Liabilities
(133)                  298                   

Total (a) (133)                 298                 

Deferred Tax Assets
Gratuity 27,917               17,321              
Leave Encashment 60,314               17,009              
Bonus Payable 17,391               -                    

Total (b) 1,05,621          34,330            

1,05,488          34,628            

Relative of key management personal:

Difference between writtten down value of fixed assets as per books and 
income tax

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (a+b)

The Company does not have any contingent liability and commitments as on March 31, 2020.

The Company operates mainly in trading of paper products and all other activities are incidental thereto, which have similar risk and 
return, accordingly, there is no separate reportable Segment disclosure is required.

Category

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel and 
their relative exercise significant influence with whom 

B) Transaction with related parties
Category
Key Management Personnel

C) Balance outstanding at the year end



(c) - Movement in Deferred Tax

Particulars Opening balance 
as at April 01

Statement of 
Profit and Loss

Other 
Comprehensive 
Income

Closing Balance 
as at March 31

2019-20
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference between 
writtten down value of 
fixed assets as per books 
and income tax

                     298                      (431) -                    (133)                  

Total (a) 298                    (431)                   -                   (133)                

Deferred Tax Assets
Gratuity 17,321                                  10,595 -                    27,917              
Leave encashment 17,009                                  43,305 -                    60,314              
Bonus Payable -                                       17,391 17,391              

Total (b) 34,330               71,291               -                   1,05,621         

34,628               70,860               -                   1,05,488         

2018-19
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference between 
writtten down value of 
fixed assets as per books 
and income tax

                     592                      (294) -                    298                   

Total (a) 592                    (294)                   -                   298                 

Deferred Tax Assets
Gratuity 6,430                                    10,892 -                    17,321              
Leave encashment 18,817                                   (1,808) -                    17,009              

Total (b) 25,247               9,084                 -                   34,330            

25,839               8,790                 -                   34,628            

(c) - Effective Tax Reconciliation

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Profit before Tax for the year (3,15,582)           9,40,435           
Tax Rate as per Income Tax Provisions 26.00                25.75                
Computed Tax Expense -                    2,42,162           
Adjustments:
Tax effect on non deductible expenses (70,860)              (8,790)               
Tax of earlier years written back 2,39,677            0
Previous years unused tax loss -                    -                    

Tax Expense as per statement of Profit and Loss 1,68,817          2,33,372         

Note-27 Deferred Tax Assets 2019-20 2018-19
MAT Credit Receivable 33,21,521          35,18,517         
Deferred Tax Asset 1,05,488            34,628              
Total Deferred Tax Asset 34,27,009        35,53,145       

Note 28 - Payment to Auditors 2019-20 2018-19
Statutory Audit Fees               60,000               64,000 

Taxation Matter -                    15,000              
Total 60,000             79,000            

Note 29 - Retirement Benefits

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognized as expense for the year is as under:
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 9,054                7,500                
Employer’s Contribution to Family Provident Fund 18,103               15,000              

Defined Benefit Plan

Defined Contribution Plan

Net Deferred Tax ( a+b )

Reconciliation of the tax expense (i.e., current tax and deferred tax) amount considering the enacted Income tax rate and effective 
Income tax rate of the Company is as follows:

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS-19) “Employee Benefits” and  provided for gratuity (unfunded) and 
leave encashment (unfunded) based on actuarial valuation done as per Projected Unit Credit Method.

Net Deferred Tax ( a+b )



I. Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of Defined Benefit Obligation

(Amount in Rs.)

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19

Opening defined benefit obligation 67,267                 24,968                 66,054               73,076              

Excess  / Short provision -                      -                       -                    -                    

Service cost 48,001                 37,831                 -                    24,994              

Interest cost 5,236                   1,918                   -                    5,627                

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss (11,971)             

Benefits paid -                      -                       -                    (25,672)             

Amounts recognized in 
Other Comprehensive 
Income (13,132)                2,550                   -                    

Closing defined benefit obligation 1,07,372            67,267               66,054             66,054            

II. Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of fair value of plan assets

 2019-20  2018-19 

Opening fair value of plan assets                         -                            -   

Expected return                         -                            -   

Actuarial Gain / (Loss)                         -                            -   

Employer contribution                         -                            -   

Benefits paid                         -                            -   

Closing fair value of plan assets                         -                            -   

III. Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligation

(Amount in Rs.)

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19

Fair value of plan assets  - 

Present value of obligation               1,07,372                  67,267               66,054               66,054 

Amount recognised in balance sheet             1,07,372                67,267              66,054             66,054 

IV. Expense recognised during the year (under the head “Employee Benefit expenses” of Note ‘19’)

(Amount in Rs.)

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19

Service cost 48,001                 37,831                 -                    24,994              

Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlem -                      -                       -                    

Interest cost 5,236                   1,918                   -                    5,627                

Expected return on plan assets -                      -                       -                    -                    

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss -                    (11,971)             

Net cost included in ‘Employee Benefit Expense’ 53,237               39,749               -                   18,650            

V. Investment Details

2019-20 (%) 2018-19 (%) 2017-18 (%) 2016-17 (%)

Investments Nil Nil Nil Nil

Gratuity 

Gratuity

Gratuity Leave Encashment 

% invested% invested

Leave Encashment

Leave Encashment

Gratuity 



VI. Actuarial Assumptions

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19

Mortality Table(LIC) 2006-08 2006-08 2006-08 2006-08

(Ultimate) (Ultimate) (Ultimate) (Ultimate)

Discount rate (per annum) 6.90% 7.80% NIL 7.80%

Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 6.00% 6.00% NIL 6.00%

VII. Amount for the current and previous four periods are as follows:-

31.03.2020 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Gratuity

Defined Benefit obligation 1,07,372           67,267                 24,968                 18,442               8,307                

Plan asset -                    -                      -                       -                    -                    

Surplus/(deficit) (1,07,372)          (67,267)                (24,968)                (18,442)              (8,307)               

Experience adjustment on plan liability (25,070)             3,559                   (5,278)                  957                   (49,355)             

Experience adjustment on plan assets - - - - -

Leave Encashment 

Defined benefit obligation 66,054              66,054                 73,076                 14,203               2,065                

Experience adjustment on plan liability 0 (11,255)                55,380                 6,604                -                    

VIII.Other Comprehensive Income for the current period

Gratuity 2019-20 2018-19

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:

          Due to Change in Financial assumptions                  12,036                (1,009)

          Due to Change in demographic assumptions                        (98)                       -   

          Due to Change in experience adjustments                 (25,070)                 3,559 

Amounts recognozed in Other Comprehensive Income               (13,132)                2,550 

IX. Leave Encashment

X. Expected Employer's contribution for the next financial year

Note 30: Earning Per Share

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to the Equity Share Holders (4,84,399)           7,07,063           
Weighted average No. of shares outstanding  during the year 55,18,200          55,18,200         
Nominal value of shares 10                     10                     
Basic / Diluted Earnings Per Share (0.09)                0.13                

Gratuity Leave Encashment

On the basis of previous year's trend, company is expecting to contribute the same amount as in 2019-20 to the defined contribution
plan.

However, for the defined benefit plan company is not liable to contribute any amount as the plans are unfunded.

Since all leave balances are being encashed as at valuation date and leave balances will be zero, Actuarial Valuation of Privilege Leave
shall not be required as at 31-03-2020.

Further, since the company is adopting to pay 1 months leave encashment every year, and there will be no carry forward of leave,
Actuarial valuation of Privilege Leave will not be required

The estimate of rate of escalation in salary is considered in actuarial valuation, taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary. 



Note 31 : Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial Risk Management

Risk
Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk

Credit Risk

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach:
Ageing of trade receivables as at year end

Due from Date of Invoice
As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019

Not Due 2,26,811            4,02,01,574      
0 - 90 days 2,45,50,304       50,000              
91 - 180 days 5,95,387            -                    
Beyond 180 days 27,99,666          42,61,545         
Gross Carrying Amount 2,81,72,168     4,45,13,119    
Expected Credit Loss -                    -                    
Net Carrying Amount 2,81,72,168     4,45,13,119    

This note explains the sources of risk which the Company is exposed to and how the Company manages the risk in the financial
statements.

Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Cash and Cash equivalents, 
trade receivables, financial
assets measured at amortized 
cost

Ageing analysis Credit rating Credit limit set and Ageing 
analysis protect Company from 
potential losses due to excess 
credit to the customers

The Company's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and
commodity risk. The Company's senior management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk management framework. The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee which is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The key risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Audit Committee
of the Company. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a
financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company and
provide assurance that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The activities are designed
to protect the Company’s financial results and position from financial risks, maintain market risks within the acceptable parameters
while optimizing returns and protect the Company’s financial investments while maximizing returns.

Financial assets are written off when there are no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Company. The Company categorizes a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than one year past due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.

The Company categorizes financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial asset into
High-quality assets, negligible credit risk; Quality assets, low credit risk; Standard assets, moderate credit risk; Substandard assets,
relatively high credit risk; Low quality assets, very high credit risk; Doubtful assets, credit impaired.

The Company considers the probability of default of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis through each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares
the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information such as:
i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business.
ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty.
iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its
obligations.
iv) Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty.

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle the obligation as agreed. To manage this, the
Company periodically assesses financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends
and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Customer wise limits are set accordingly.

Borrowing and other liabilities Rolling Cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit 
lines and borrowing facilities



Liquidity Risk

Contractual maturity pattern of borrowings and Trade Payables:
Particulars Refer Note 0-1 year 1-5 years Total
As at 31st March, 2020
Trade Payables 13 20,17,508            7,50,834           27,68,342         
Total 20,17,508          7,50,834          27,68,342       
As at 31st March, 2019
Trade Payables 13 7,35,48,570         -                    7,35,48,570      
Total 7,35,48,570       -                   7,35,48,570    

Note 32 : Financial Instrument
Financial Assets :

Fair Value Amortized
cost

FVTPL Carrying
amount

As at March 31, 2020
Trade Receivables (Note 7) 2,81,72,168         2,81,72,168         2,81,72,168       

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents (Note 8)

1,25,554              1,25,554              1,25,554           

Total -                -                    2,82,97,722       2,82,97,722       2,82,97,722     
As at March 31, 2019
Trade Receivables (Note 7) 4,45,13,119         4,45,13,119         4,45,13,119       

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents (Note 8)

5,46,198              5,46,198              5,46,198           

Total -                -                    4,50,59,317       4,50,59,317       4,50,59,317     

Financial Liabilities

Fair Value Amortized
cost

FVTPL Carrying
amount

As at March 31, 2020
-                    -                    

27,68,342            27,68,342          27,68,342         
-                   -                     27,68,342          27,68,342        27,68,342       

7,35,48,570         7,35,48,570       7,35,48,570      
-                   -                     7,35,48,570       7,35,48,570     7,35,48,570    

Note 33

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date.

For Shah & Shah For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Konndor Industries Limited
(Firm Reg. No. :  131527W)

Tejas C. Shah Santoshkumar Pandey Shashikant Thakar
Partner Director and CFO Director
M No. 135639 DIN - 08415079 DIN : 02887471

Date : July 13, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad

Sanjay Gupta Udit Vora
Whole Time Director Company Secretary
DIN - 08415091 A38017

Date : July 13, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad

Total

Trade payables (Note - 13)
Total
As at March 31, 2019
Trade payables (Note - 13)

Particulars Instruments carried at Total
carrying

amt.
At Cost

Particulars Instruments carried at Total
carrying

amt.

Total fair
value

Hierarchy Level
At Cost

The table below analysis derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

Previous Year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current year presentation.

Total fair
value

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial
asset quickly at close to its fair value.

The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the
maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company also has adequate credit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its
normal operating commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner.




